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Statutory reportS – Board’S report

Directors’ Report to the Shareholders

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 33rd Annual Report along with the Audited Accounts of your Company 
for the year ended March 31, 2020.

1. Financial ReSultS
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars
For the  

year ended 
March 31, 2020

For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2019

Income 33,688.88 32,336.35
Profit before Interest, Depreciation and Taxation 8,283.95 10,650.93
Depreciation 893.79 361.57
Profit before Taxation 7,390.16 10,289.36
Provision for Taxation:
Provision for Current Tax 2059.00 3,188.00
Provision for Deferred Tax (5.03) (48.03)
Provision for Taxation 2,053.97 3,139.97
Profit after Taxation 5,336.19 7,149.39
Other Comprehensive Income (222.21) (43.95)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 5,113.98 7,105.44
Balance of Retained Earnings for prior years 33,999.36 28,193.37
Amount available for appropriation 5,336.19 7,149.39
Appropriations:
Issue of Bonus Shares 0.00 784.12
Dividend on Equity Shares (paid) 773.20 463.92
Tax on Dividend (paid) 158.93 95.36
Surplus Retained Earnings carried to Balance Sheet 38,403.42 33,999.36

2. DiviDenD
 In light of the extra-ordinary situation caused by 

the COVID-19 pandemic and resultant national lock-
down, it is felt prudent that the Company should 
conserve its cash resources. Your Directors, 
therefore, do not recommend dividend for the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2020 (previous 
year, at the rate of Rs.7.50 per Equity Shares of 
Rs.10 each on 1,03,09,280 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 
each, aggregating to Rs. 773.20 lakhs, plus dividend 
distribution tax, surcharge and education cess, 
amounting to Rs.923.13 lakhs).

3. ReSeRveS
 No amount is proposed to be transferred to General 

Reserve and an amount of Rs. 38,403.42 lakhs 
is proposed to be retained in the statement of 
Profit and Loss.

4. OPeRatiOnS
 The year ended March 31, 2020 marked the 16th 

year of successful insurance broking operations 
of your Company. In this journey of 16 years, your 
Company has been able to serve over ¬14 million 
insurance cases, largely in the rural and semi-urban 
markets in India. Your Company has been able to 
reach the benefit of insurance to over 3,00,000 
villages across India. Your Company endeavors to 

further increase insurance penetration in rural 
India as well as become a significant player in global 
insurance markets.

 During the year under review, your Company serviced 
approximately 2.23 million insurance cases, with a 
total of 22,33,711 cases for both Life and Non-Life 
Retail business. The customized Life insurance cover 
“Mahindra Loan Suraksha” (MLS) decreased from 
8,13,742 lives covered with a Sum Assured of Rs. 
27,76,497  lakhs in the Financial Year 2018-19 to 
6,84,186 lives covered with a Sum Assured of Rs. 
25,39,072 lakhs in the Financial Year 2019-20. A 
substantial portion of MLS continues to be covered 
in the rural markets.

 Your Company achieved a growth of 7% in Gross 
Premium facilitated for the Corporate and Retail 
business lines, increasing from Rs. 2,26,510.02 
lakhs in the Financial Year 2018-19 to Rs. 2,43,189.11 
lakhs in the Financial Year 2019-20. The Total Income 
increased by 4% from Rs. 32,336.35lakhs in the 
Financial Year 2018-19 to Rs. 33,688.89 lakhs in 
the Financial Year 2019-20. The Profit before Tax 
decreased by 28% from Rs. 10,289.36 lakhs to Rs. 
7,390.16 lakhs, and the Profit after Tax decreased by 
25% from Rs. 7,149.39 lakhs to Rs. 5336.19 lakhs 
during the same period. The Networth increased 
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by 11% from Rs. 38,086.38 lakhs in the Financial 
Year 2018-19 to Rs. 42,268.23 lakhs in the 
Financial Year 2019-20.

5. achieveMentS
 The Company participated in the 10th CII National HR 

Excellence Award (Confederation Of Indian Industry) 
and has been awarded with ‘Significant Achievement 
in HR Excellence’ in February, 2020. Your Company 
also bagged the 8th India CSR Awards – Recognizing 
Excellence in Corporate Social Responsibility for 
Project Aarogya – Rural Health Care by India CSR on 
March 16, 2020.

 Mahindra Insurance Brokers Ltd. is Great Place 
to Work-Certified™ on building a High-Trust, High-
Performance Culture™ in the organization in the 
year ended on March 31, 2020. Your Company has 
been recognized amongst the Top 25 India’s Best 
Workplaces in the BFSI Sector in the year ended on 
March 31, 2020 in the large companies’ category.

6. ShaRe caPital
 During the year under review, the Company has 

neither issued shares with differential voting rights 
as to dividend, voting or otherwise, nor has issued 
any sweat equity. The Company has not formulated 
any Employees Stock Option Scheme during the year 
under review. There were no Shares having voting 
rights not exercised directly by the employees and 
for the purchase of which or subscription to which, 
loan was given by the Company.

 The Authorised Share Capital of the Company was 
Rs. 15,00,00,000 on March 31, 2020.  The issued, 
subscribed and paid-up Equity Share Capital as on 
March 31, 2020 was Rs. 10,30,92,800, comprising 
of 1,03,09,280 Equity Shares of the face value of Rs. 
10 each fully paid-up.

 As on March 31, 2020, none of the Directors of the 
Company hold instruments convertible into Equity 
Shares of the Company.

7. DiRectORS
 The composition of the Board of Directors of your 

Company is in conformity with the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time 
to time. As on March 31, 2020, the Company has 
8 (eight) directors of which 1 (one) is Managing 
Director, 1(one) Director is a Nominee of the 
Investor, 4 (four) are Non-Executive Non-Independent 
Directors and 2 (two) are Independent Directors. 
The profiles of the Directors can be viewed at  
https://www.mahindrainsurance.com/Board.aspx

 The Board reviews and approves strategy and 
oversees the actions and results of the management 
to ensure that the long term objectives of the 
enhancing stakeholders’ value are met. The Board 
periodically reviews the compliance reports of all 
laws applicable to the Company. None of the Board 
of Directors holds directorships in more than 10 
public companies. None of the directors are related 
to each other. Mr. Rajeev Dubey (DIN: 00104817) 
and Mr. Ramesh Iyer (DIN: 00220759) retire 
by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting and being eligible offer themselves for 
re-appointment. Mr. Jyotin Mehta (DIN: 00033518) 
and Ms. Anjali Raina (DIN: 02327927) were 
appointed as Independent Directors of the Company 
for a period of 5 (five) years with effect from March 
30, 2020. These Independent Directors shall hold 
the office of directorship for a term of 5(five) years. 
Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar ceased to be an Independent 
Director with effect from March 30, 2020 upon 
completion of his term as an Independent Director. 
The Board places on record its appreciation for his 
valuable contribution and guidance.

8. Key ManageRial PeRSOnnel
 As at the date of this Report, the Key Managerial 

Personnel of the Company, as envisaged under the 
provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 
2013, are Dr. Jaideep Devare – Managing Director, 
Mr. Saurabh V. Dharadhar – Chief Financial Officer 
and Ms. Rupa Joshi – Company Secretary.

9.  BOaRD Meeting anD annual 
geneRal Meeting

 The Board of Directors met 6(six) times in Financial 
Year 2019-20 viz. April 18, 2019, July 18, 2019, 
October 19, 2019, November 13, 2019, January 
17, 2020 and February 20, 2020. The maximum 
interval between any 2 (two) meetings did not 
exceed 120 days, as prescribed in the Companies 
Act, 2013. Necessary quorum was present for all 
the meetings. Video-conferencing facilities are also 
used to facilitate Directors travelling abroad/at other 
locations to participate in the meetings.

 There were 2 (two) Extra-Ordinary General Meetings 
held during the year viz. November 11, 2019 and 
March 18, 2020.

 The names and categories of the Directors of the 
Company, their attendance at the Board Meetings 
held during the Financial Year 2019-20 and at the 
last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 
July 18, 2019 are as follows:
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names of Directors category

attendance at the Board Meetings 
held during the Financial  

year 2019-20

attendance at 
the last annual 

general Meeting 
held on  

July 18, 2019
(yes/ no/ n.a.)

held attended

Mr. Rajeev Dubey (Chairman) Non-Executive, Non-Independent 6 6 Yes
Mr. Ramesh Iyer Non-Executive, Non-Independent 6 6 Yes
Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar Non-Executive, Independent 6 6 Yes
Mr. V. Ravi Non-Executive, Non-Independent 6 6 Yes
Ms. Anjali Raina Non-Executive, Independent 6 5 Yes
Mr. Hemant Sikka Non-Executive, Non-Independent 6 4 Yes
Dr. Jaideep Devare Executive,Non-Independent 6 6 Yes
Mr. Derek Nazareth Non-Executive, (Investor Director) 6 5 No
Mr. Jyotin Mehta* Independent Director 0 0 N.A.
*Mr. Jyotin Mehta has been appointed as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from 30th March, 2020. No meeting was held 
during his tenure.

10.  MeetingS OF inDePenDent 
DiRectORS

 As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors 
under the Act, 2 (two) meetings of the Independent 
Directors were held on February 20, 2020 and 
March 5, 2020 during the year 2019-20. These 
Meetings were conducted in an informal manner to 
enable the Independent Directors to discuss matters 
relating to Company’s affairs and put forth their views 
without the presence of the Managing Director, Chief 
Financial Officer, other Non-Independent Directors 
and members of the Management.

 At these Meetings, the Independent Directors 
reviewed the performance of Non-Independent 
Directors and the Board as a whole, reviewed the 
performance of the Chairman of the Company, 
taking into account the views of Executive Directors 
and Non-Executive Directors, assessed the quality, 
quantity and timeliness of the flow of information 
between the Management and the Board and its 
Committees that is necessary for the Board to 
effectively and reasonably perform and discharge 
its duties. Both these Meetings were well attended 
by the Independent Directors.

11. cOMMitteeS OF the BOaRD
 The Committees constituted by the Board focus 

on specific areas and take informed decisions 
within the framework of delegated authority, and 
make specific recommendations to the Board 
on matters within their areas or purview. The 
decisions and recommendations of the Committees 
are placed before the Board for information or for 
approval, as required.

 Your  Company  has t h r ee Boar d l e ve l 
Committees – Audit Committee, Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee.

 The composition and functioning of these Committees 
is in compliance with the applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. During the year under review, 
all recommendations received from its Committees 
were accepted by the Board.

 The Company has following Committees of the Board:

 i) Audit Committee

 ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

 iii) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

 i) audit committee
  As on March 31, 2020, the Audit Committee 

comprised of 2 (two) Independent Directors 
and 1 (one) Non-Executive Non-Independent 
Director. Presently, the Committee is comprised 
of Mr. Jyotin Mehta (Chairman) and Ms. Anjali 
Raina, both Independent Directors and Mr. V. 
Ravi, Non-Executive Non-Independent Director.

  The Committee met 6 (six) times during the 
year on April 18, 2019, July 1, 2019, July 
18, 2019, October 19, 2019, November 13, 
2019 and January 17, 2020. The gap between 
2 (two) meetings did not exceed one hundred 
and twenty days.

  The Committee was reconstituted with 
effect from April 1, 2020 due to completion 
of the term of Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar, as an 
Independent Director and the appointment of 
Mr. Jyotin Mehta as an Independent Director 
of the Company with effect from March 30, 
2020, respectively.

  All the Members of the Audit Committee possess 
strong accounting and financial management 
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knowledge. The Committee’s composition meets 
with the requirements of Section 177 of the Act.

  The terms of reference of this Committee are 
very wide and are in line with the regulatory 
requirements mandated by the Act. Besides 
having access to all the required information 
from within the Company, the Committee 
can obtain external professional advice 
whenever required.

  The Committee acts as a link between the 
Statutory and the Internal Auditors and 
the Board of Directors of the Company. It is 
authorised to, inter alia, review and monitor 
the Auditor’s independence and performance, 
effectiveness of the audit process, oversight 
of the Company’s financial reporting process 
and the disclosure of its financial information, 
reviewing with the Management; the quarterly 
and annual f inancial statements and the 
Auditors’ Report thereon before submission 
to the Board for approval, select and establish 
accounting policies, review reports of the 
Statutory and the Internal Auditors and 
meet with them to discuss their findings, 
suggestions and other related matters, approve 

transactions of the Company with related parties 
including subsequent modifications thereof, 
grant omnibus approvals for related party 
transactions subject to fulfillment of certain 
conditions, scrutinise intercorporate loans 
and investments, valuation of undertakings or 
assets of the Company wherever it is necessary, 
evaluate internal financial controls and risk 
management systems. The Committee is also 
empowered to inter alia review the remuneration 
payable to the Statutory Auditors and Internal 
Auditors, recommend to the Board the term of 
appointment and remuneration of the Statutory 
Auditors and Internal Auditors and recommend 
a change in the Auditors, if felt necessary. 
Further, the Committee is empowered to 
recommend to the Board, the appointment of 
Chief Financial Officer, the term of appointment 
and remuneration of the Internal Auditor, etc.

  The Committee is also authorised to oversee the 
functioning of the Whistle Blower Policy as well 
as review on a periodic basis.

  The attendance of the members of the Audit 
Committee at its meetings held during the 
Financial Year 2019-20 is given below:

names of Members category

attendance at the Meetings
held during the  

Financial year 2019-20

held attended

Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar (Chairman)* Non-Executive, Independent 6 6
Mr. Jyotin Mehta (Chairman)# Non-Executive, Independent 0 0
Ms. Anjali Raina Non-Executive, Independent 6 5
Mr. V. Ravi Non-Executive, Non-Independent 6 6
*Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar ceased to be a Director of the Company with effect from March 30, 2020 and hence ceased to be Chairman of Audit 
Committee.

#Mr. Jyotin Mehta was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from March 30, 2020 and was appointed as 
Chairman of Audit Committee with effect from April 1, 2020.

  The Board has accepted all the recommendations 
made by the Audit Committee during the year. 
The Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer, 
Chief Internal Auditor of Mahindra & Mahindra 
Limited and the Principal Officer are regularly 
invited to attend the Audit Committee Meetings. 
The Company Secretary is the Secretary 
to the Committee.

  Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar, Chairman of the Audit 
Committee for Financial Year 2019-20, was 
present at the 32nd Annual General Meeting of 
the Company held on July 18, 2019.

ii)  nomination and Remuneration committee
 As on March 31, 2020, the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee comprised of 2 (two) 
Independent Directors and 2 (two) Non-Executive 
Non-Independent Directors.

 The Committee was reconstituted with effect from 
April 1, 2020 due to completion of the term of 
Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar, as an Independent Director 
and the appointment of Mr. Jyotin Mehta as an 
Independent Director of the Company with effect 
from March 30, 2020, respectively.
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 Presently, the Committee comprises of Mr. Jyotin 
Mehta and Ms. Anjali Raina, Independent Directors 
and Mr. Rajeev Dubey and Mr. Ramesh Iyer, 
Non-Executive and Non-Independent Directors 
of the Company.

 The Committee met 3 (three) times during the year 
on April 18, 2019, July 18, 2019, and January 17, 
2020. The gap between 2 (two) meetings did not 
exceed one hundred and twenty days.

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee inter 
alia identifies persons who are qualified to become 
directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria to be 
laid down and recommends the appointment and 
removal of directors and carries out performance 
evaluation of every director in accordance with the 

framework adopted by the Board. The Committee also 
decides the criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes and independence of a director 
and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to 
the remuneration for the directors, key managerial 
personnel and other employees. The Committee 
is also empowered to look into the entire gamut of 
remuneration package for the working Director(s) 
and revise their remuneration suitably within the 
limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 
with power to consider fixing/re-fixing salaries, 
perquisites and other terms of remuneration of 
the working Director(s) of the Company subject to 
approval of shareholders.

 The attendance of the Members of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee at its meetings held during 
the Financial Year 2019-20 is given below:

names of Members category
attendance at the Meetings held 

during the Financial year 2019-20

held attended

Mr. Rajeev Dubey Non-Executive, Non-Independent 3 3
Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar* Non-Executive, Independent 3 3
Mr. Jyotin Mehta# Non-Executive, Independent 0 0
Mr. Ramesh Iyer Non-Executive, Non-Independent 3 3
Ms. Anjali Raina Non-Executive, Independent 3 2
*Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar ceased to be a Director of the Company with effect from March 30, 2020 and hence ceased to be Chairman of Audit 
Committee.

#Mr. Jyotin Mehta was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from March 30, 2020 and was appointed as 
Chairman of Audit Committee with effect from April 1, 2020.

iii) corporate Social Responsibility committee
 As on March 31, 2020, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprised of 1 (one) Independent 

Director and 4 (four) Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors. The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
is comprised of Mr. Rajeev Dubey, Mr. Ramesh Iyer, Mr. V. Ravi, Ms. Anjali Raina and Dr. Jaideep Devare.

 The Committee met twice during the year on April 18, 2019, and October 19, 2019. The gap between 2 (two) 
meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days.

 The Committee is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 135 of the Act. The Committee formulates and 
recommends to the Board, a CSR Policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified 
in Schedule VII of the Act. The Committee also recommends the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the 
activities mentioned in the CSR Policy and monitors the CSR Policy periodically.

 The details of the meetings attended by the Committee Members are as follows:

names of Members category
attendance at the Meetings held 

during the Financial year 2019-20

held attended

Mr. Rajeev Dubey (Chairman) Non-Executive, Non-Independent 2 2
Mr. Ramesh Iyer Non-Executive, Non-Independent 2 2
Ms. Anjali Raina Non-Executive, Independent 2 2
Mr. V. Ravi Non-Executive, Non-Independent 2 2
Dr. Jaideep Devare Executive, Non-Independent 2 2
Your Company is in compliance with the statutory requirements in this regard. The Annual Report on the CSR activities undertaken by your 
Company in the Financial Year 2019-20 is appended as Annexure I to this Report.
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12.  cOMPliance with SecRetaRial 
StanDaRDS

 The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India and that such systems 
are adequate and operating effectively.

 The applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and 
SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ 
and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly 
complied by your Company.

13.  PeRFORMance evaluatiOn OF the 
BOaRD

 The evaluation framework for assessing the 
performance of Directors comprises of various key 
areas such as attendance at Board and Committee 
Meetings, quality of contribution to Board discussions 
and decisions, strategic insights or inputs regarding 
future growth of the Company and its performance, 
ability to challenge views in a constructive manner, 
knowledge acquired with regard to the Company’s 
business/ activities, understanding of industry and 
global trends, etc.

 The evaluation involves self-evaluation by the Board 
Member and subsequent assessment by the Board of 
Directors. A member of the Board will not participate 
in the discussion of his/her evaluation. Pursuant 
to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Board has carried out an annual evaluation of its own 
performance and that of its Committees as well as 
performance of the Directors individually (including 
Independent Directors). Feedback was sought by 
way of well-defined and structured questionnaires 
covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning 
such as adequacy of the composition of the Board 
and its Committees, Board culture, areas of 
responsibility, execution and performance of specific 
duties, obligations and governance, compliance, 
etc., and the evaluation was carried out based on 
responses received from the Directors.

 A separate exercise was carried out by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the 
Board to evaluate the performance of individual 
Directors who were evaluated on several parameters 
such as level of engagement and contribution, 
independence of judgment, safeguarding the interest 
of the Company and its minority shareholders and 
knowledge acquired with regard to the Company’s 
business/activities. The performance evaluation of 
the Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a 
whole was carried out by the Independent Directors.

 The performance evaluation of the Chairman of the 
Company was also carried out by the Independent 
Directors, taking into account the views of the 
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. 
The performance evaluation of the Independent 
Directors was carried out by the entire Board 
excluding the Director being evaluated. Qualitative 
comments and suggestions of Directors were taken 
into consideration by the Chairman of the Board and 
the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee. The Directors have expressed their 
satisfaction with the evaluation process.

14.  cOnFiRMatiOn RegaRDing 
inDePenDence OF inDePenDent 
DiRectORS

 The Company has received declarations from all the 
Independent Directors confirming that they meet the 
criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 
framed thereunder.

 Based on the disclosures received from all the 
Independent Directors, the Board is of the opinion 
that the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions 
specif ied in Section 149 of the Act and are 
independent of the Management.

15.  StateMent RegaRDing the 
OPiniOn OF the BOaRD with 
RegaRD tO integRity, exPeRtiSe 
anD exPeRience (incluDing the 
PROFiciency) OF the inDePenDent 
DiRectORS

 The Board is of the opinion that the Independent 
Directors viz. Mr. Jyotin Mehta and Ms. Anjali Raina 
satisfy the criteria as defined under Rule 8(5) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015 with regard to 
integrity, expertise and experience (including the 
proficiency) of the independent directors appointed 
w.e.f 1st December, 2019 during the year.

 Mr. Jyotin Mehta is exempted from appearing 
for online proficiency self-assessment test as per 
Rule 6(4) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (“the said 
Rule”). Ms. Anjali Raina has passed the online 
proficiency self-assessment test as prescribed 
under the said Rule.

16.  DiRectORS’ ReSPOnSiBility 
StateMent

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the 
best of its knowledge and ability, confirm that:
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 i. In the preparation of the annual accounts for 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2020, the 
applicable accounting standards have been 
followed and there are no material departures 
in adoption of these standards;

 ii.  They have selected such accounting policies and 
applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent 
so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the Company at March 31, 2020 
and of the profit of the Company for the year 
ended on that date;

 iii.  They have taken proper and sufficient care 
for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

 iv. They have prepared the annual accounts for 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2020 on a 
‘going concern’ basis;

 v. They devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and 
operating effectively.

17. cORPORate SOcial ReSPOnSiBility
 Transforming lives of the rural population has been 

the primary focus of all CSR initiatives undertaken 
by your Company. The endeavour is to empower 
the rural communities and help them unleash their 
potential. Your Company has identified Healthcare, 
Education (including Livelihood) and Environment as 
key CSR thrust areas for the welfare of one of the 
major stakeholders - rural communities in India.

 During the year under review, your Company has 
spent Rs. 185.20 lakhs on CSR projects/programs. 
The amount equal to 2% of the average net profit for 
the past three financial years required to be spent on 
CSR activities was Rs. 180.71 lakhs. Your Company 
is in compliance with the statutory requirements 
in this regard.

 The CSR Policy of the Company is hosted on the 
Company’s website https://www.mahindrainsurance.
com/Social-Responsibility.aspx.

 The brief outline of the CSR Policy and the CSR 
initiatives undertaken by the Company during the 
year as per annexure prescribed in the Companies 

(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 
have been appended as annexure i to this Report.

18. extRact OF annual RetuRn
 Pursuant to sub-section 3(a) of Section 134 and 

sub-section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, read with Rule 12 (1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an 
extract of the Annual Return in the prescribed Form 
MGT-9, as at March 31, 2020 which forms part of 
this Report and is appended as annexure ii.

 The Annual Return of the Company has been placed 
on the website of the Company and can be accessed 
at https:// www.mahindrainsurance.com

19.  cOMPany’S POlicy On 
ReMuneRatiOn OF DiRectORS, 
Key ManageRial PeRSOnnel anD 
eMPlOyeeS

 The Company has adopted the following policies as 
required under sub-section (3) of section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013:

 (i) ‘Policy on Remuneration of Directors’ and

 (ii) ‘Remuneration Policy for Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMPs) and  Employees’.

 which includes the criteria for determining 
qua l i f i c a t i ons,  pos i t i v e  a t t r i bu t es  and 
independence of a director.

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
while recommending the appointment of Directors 
considers desirable qualifications which may amongst 
other things include professional qualifications, 
skills, professional experience, background and 
knowledge apart from the criteria of independence 
as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

 The Policy on Remuneration of Directors and 
Remuneration Policy for KMPs and Employees of the 
Company is appended as annexure iii to this Report 
in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (4) 
of section 178 of the Act. The remuneration paid 
to the directors is as per the terms laid out in the 
Remuneration Policy of the Company.

 The Remuneration Policy on Remuneration of 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Employees 
of the Company is hosted on the Company’s 
website https://www.mahindrainsurance.com/
Remuneration-Policy.aspx



8

INSURANCE BROKERS Annual Report 2019-20

BOaRD’S RePORt

20. whiStle BlOweR POlicy
 The Company promotes ethical behaviour in all 

its business activities and has established a vigil 
mechanism for its Directors, Employees and 
Stakeholders associated with the Company to report 
their genuine concerns. The Company has voluntarily 
adopted a Whistle Blower Policy, to provide for 
adequate safeguards against victimisation of 
persons who use such mechanism and make 
provision for direct access to the Chairperson of 
the Audit Committee. As per the Whistle Blower 
Policy implemented by the Company at its Board 
Meeting held on November 13, 2019, the Employees, 
Directors, vendors, suppliers, or any Stakeholders 
associated with the Company are eligible to make 
protected disclosures under the policy.

 Under the Whistle Blower Policy, the confidentiality 
of those reporting violation(s) is protected and they 
are not subject to any discriminatory practices. 
Protected disclosures can be made through 5 
reporting channels viz. phone, email, web portal, fax 
and post box. The Whistle Blower Policy has been 
appropriately communicated within the Company 
and is available on the website of your Company at 
the web-link: https://www.mahindrainsurance.com/
Whistle_blower.aspx.

21.  cODeS OF cOnDuct FOR cORPORate 
gOveRnance

 The Board of Directors of the Company had 
adopted separate Codes of Conduct for Corporate 
Governance (“the Codes”) for its Directors and Senior 
Management and Employees. These Codes enunciate 
the underlying principles governing the conduct of 
the Company’s business and seek to reiterate the 
fundamental precept that good governance must and 
would always be an integral part of the Company’s 
ethos. The Company has for the year under review, 
received declarations under the Codes from the 
Board Members, the Senior Management and 
Employees of the Company affirming compliance with 
the respective Codes.

 The Board has also laid down a Code of Conduct 
for Independent Directors pursuant to Section 
149(8) read with Schedule IV of the Act, which is 
a guide to professional conduct for Independent 
Directors of the Company. This code is available 
on the Company’s website at https://www.
mahindrainsurance.com/Board.aspx

22. PuBlic DePOSitS
 The Company has not accepted any deposits from the 

public or its employees during the year under review. 
No amount on account of principal or interest on 

deposits from public was outstanding as on the date 
of balance sheet.

23.  PaRticulaRS OF lOanS, 
guaRanteeS OR inveStMentS

 The Company has made loans and advances in the 
nature of loans under Section 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the details of which are mentioned in the 
notes to the financial statements and forms part 
of this Report.

 Your Company has not made any loans/advances 
and investment which are required to be disclosed 
in the annual accounts of the Company pursuant 
to Regulation 34(3) and 53(f) of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read 
with Schedule V, applicable to the parent Company.

24.  PaRticulaRS OF cOntRactS OR 
aRRangeMentS with RelateD 
PaRtieS

 All contracts / arrangements / transactions 
entered into by the Company during the Financial 
Year with related parties were in the ordinary course 
of business and on an arm’s length basis hence do not 
fall under the scope of Section 188(1) of the Act. None 
of the Non-Executive Directors have any pecuniary 
relationships or transactions vis-à-vis the Company.

 The information on transactions with related parties 
pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with 
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
are given in the prescribed form AOC -2 as annexure 
iv and the same forms part of this report.

25.  MateRial changeS anD 
cOMMitMentS aFFecting the 
Financial POSitiOn OF the 
cOMPany

 There have been no material changes and 
commitments, affecting the financial position of the 
Company which have occurred between the end of the 
Financial Year of the Company to which the financial 
statements relate and the date of this Report.

26.  change in the natuRe OF 
BuSineSS

 There was no change in nature of business carried 
on by the Company during the year under review.

27. RiSK ManageMent
 The Company has a well-defined risk management 

framework in place. Your Company has established 
procedures to periodically review risk assessment 
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and steps taken by it to mitigate these risks. The 
key business risks identified by the Company and its 
mitigation plans are as under:

 i) competitive Risks
  Overall slowdown in economic activity could have 

an adverse effect on the financial condition and 
operational results of the Company.

  As the overall levels of economic activity 
increase, the demand for insurance generally 
rises, and vice-versa. This impacts both, the 
brokerage as well as fees, generated by the 
business. Softening of the insurance market i.e. 
downward trends in the year-over-year insurance 
premium charged by insurers to offer protection 
against the same risk, could adversely affect the 
business as a large portion of the earnings are 
brokerage which is determined as a percentage 
of premium charged to the customers.

  Significant competitive pressures in each of 
the business lines

  The Company competes with a large number 
of insurance companies and other insurance 
intermediaries. Some of the competitors may 
have or may develop a lower cost structure, 
adopt or provide services that gain greater 
market acceptance. Large and well-established 
competitors may be able to respond to the need 
for technological changes and innovate faster, 
or price their services more aggressively. They 
may also compete hard for skilled professionals, 
finance acquisitions, fund internal growth 
and compete for customers. To respond to 
increased competition, we may have to lower 
the pricing of the services.

 ii) legal and Regulatory Risks
  the company is subject to professional 

indemnity claims made against it, as well as 
other legal proceedings, some of which, if 
determined against the company, could have 
a material adverse effect on the financial 
condition or results of operations of a particular 
business line or the company as a whole.

  The Company traditionally has procured, and 
intends to continue to procure, insurance to 
cover professional indemnity claims and other 
insurance to provide protection against certain 
claims or losses that arise in such matters.

  The business is subject to extensive regulation, 
which could reduce profitability, limit growth, or 
increase competition.

  The business is subject to extensive legal 
and regulatory oversight, including the IRDAI 
(Insurance Brokers) Regulations, 2018 and 
the rules and regulations promulgated by the 
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority 
of India (IRDAI) and a variety of other laws, 
rules and regulations. This legal and regulatory 
oversight could reduce profitability or limit 
growth by limiting or restricting the products 
or services the Company sells, by increasing 
the costs of legal and regulatory compliance, 
limiting the distribution methods by which it sells 
products and services, or capping the brokerage 
or fees it can charge for the services, limiting the 
amount and form of compensation it can accept 
from the customers, insurers and third parties, 
or by subjecting the business to the possibility of 
legal and regulatory actions or proceedings.

  Though the employees of the Company and 
authorized representatives exercise due care so 
not to violate these laws and regulations, there 
can be no assurances as regards the same.

 iii) Operational and commercial Risks
  the company’s success depends on its 

ability to retain and attract experienced 
and qualified personnel, including the senior 
management and operating team and other 
professional personnel.

  The business depends, to a large extent, upon 
the members of the senior management team 
and senior operating team, who possess 
extensive knowledge and a deep understanding 
of the business and strategy. The unexpected 
loss of services of any of the senior executives 
could have a disruptive effect, thereby impacting 
ability to manage the business effectively till 
such time as an able replacement is in place. 
The Company is constantly working to retain 
and attract these professionals through various 
people development initiatives.

  Business performance and growth plans 
could be affected if the company is not able 
to effectively apply technology in driving 
value for its customers through technology-
based solutions or gain internal efficiencies 
through the effective application of technology 
and related tools. conversely, investments 
in innovative technology-based solutions 
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may fail to yield sufficient return to cover 
their investments.

  The Company’s success depends, in part, on 
its ability to apply and implement technology-
based solutions that anticipate and keep pace 
with rapid and continuing changes in customer 
preferences. Response to these preferences 
needs to be timely and cost-effective. This 
also entails the business to incur considerable 
investment. In order to acquire and retain 
customers, the Company continuously strives 
to offer newer and cost-effective technologies 
to its customers, ahead of its competitors.

  Other factors, outside of the company’s control.

  The Company has no control over premium 
rates. The brokerage rates, too, are capped by 
the regulations.

  In addition to movements in premium rates, the 
ability to generate premium-based brokerage 
revenue may be challenged by:

	 	 •	 the	level	of	compensation,	as	a	percentage	
of premium, that insurers are willing 
to compensate brokers for placement 
activity, which in any case, is capped by 
the regulations;

	 	 •	 compet i t ion	 from	 insurers	 seek ing	
to sel l their products direct l y to 
consumers without the involvement of an 
insurance broker;

	 	 •	 increasing	 wil l ingness	 on	 the	 par t	
of customers to "self- insure”, which 
would increase competit ion and put 
pressure on pricing;

	 	 •	 fluctuation	 in	 the	 need	 for	 insurance	
as the economic downturn continues, 
a s  c u s t ome r s  p r i o r i t i z e  t h e i r 
need and w i l l ingness to procure 
insurance accordingly.

28. auDitORS
 Messrs. B. K. Khare & Co., Chartered Accountants 

(ICAI Firm Registration No.105102W), completed 
their term as Statutory Auditors as provided under 
the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant Rules 
thereunder. The Board has placed on record its 
sincere appreciation for the services rendered by 
Messrs. B. K. Khare & Co., as Statutory Auditors 
of the Company.

 The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the 
Audit Committee has approved and recommended to 
the Members, the appointment of Messrs. Mukund 
M. Chitale & Co., Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm 
Registration Number 106655W) as Statutory 
Auditors for a period of 4 years, commencing from 
the conclusion of the 32nd AGM until the conclusion 
of the 36th AGM of the Company to be held in the 
year 2023. Messrs. Mukund M. Chitale & Co., 
Chartered Accountants had given a written consent 
to act as Statutory Auditors of your Company and 
also confirmed that the said appointment would be 
in conformity with the provisions of sections 139 
and 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. The 
Members at the Annual General Meeting held on July 
18, 2019 had approved the appointment of Messrs. 
Mukund M. Chitale & Co., Chartered Accountants as 
Statutory Auditors of the Company.

 Pursuant to the Notification issued by the Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs on 7th May, 2018 amending 
Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the applicable Rules, the mandatory requirement 
for ratification of appointment of Auditors by the 
Members at every AGM has been omitted and 
hence the Company has not proposed ratification of 
appointment of Messrs. Mukund M. Chitale & Co., 
Chartered Accountants, at the ensuing AGM and 
a note in respect of same has been included in the 
Notice for this AGM. The Statutory Auditors have 
given a confirmation to the effect that they are eligible 
to continue with their appointment and that they have 
not been disqualified in any manner from continuing 
as Statutory Auditors. The remuneration payable to 
the Statutory Auditors shall be determined by the 
Board of Directors based on the recommendation 
of the Audit Committee.

29.  accOunting StanDaRDS 
FOllOweD By the cOMPany

 The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards as 
per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') and other relevant 
provisions of the Act.

30.cOMMentS On auDitORS’ RePORt
 There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse 

remarks or disclaimers made by M/s Mukund M. 
Chitale & Co., Statutory Auditors, in their report. 
The Auditors’ Report is enclosed with the financial 
statements in this Annual Report.
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31. huMan ReSOuRceS
 The Company considers its talent as its great asset 

and continues to invest in development of Human 
Capital. Your Company, during the year ended on 
March 31, 2020 has organized various capability 
development programmes by reputed faculties 
and professional institutions recommended by 
regulators for the employees in different functions 
and levels. Your Company continues to focus on 
building leadership capabilities and recognizing 
the team managers who provide a rewarding work 
environment for their teams.

 Your Company understands its responsibility towards 
society and sustainability through the spectrum of 
people, profit and planet and always encourages its 
employees in volunteering and implementing various 
social initiatives.

 Your Company focuses on delivering best-in-class 
services to the customers and endeavors to equip 
employees with enhanced skills, capabilities and 
technology to provide superior service experience 
to the customers. The Company has a robust 
framework of processes which is continually guided by 
assessments/feedback from the institutions such as 
The Mahindra Way, People-CMM (CMMI® Institute), 
CII (The Confederation by Indian Industry) and ISO.

 Your Company strongly believes in maintaining 
the dignity of all employees. Discrimination and 
harassment of any type are strictly prohibited. Your 
Company has taken the necessary steps to abide by 
all statutory compliances and enhance awareness 
w.r.t. provisions of the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Rules 
framed thereunder. During the year under review, 
there were no cases filed pursuant to the Act and 
Rules framed thereunder.

32. SuBSiDiaRieS
 The Company does not have any subsidiary as at 

March 31, 2020 or during the Financial Year 
ended on that date.

33.  PaRticulaRS RegaRDing 
cOnSeRvatiOn OF eneRgy, 
technOlOgy aBSORPtiOn, anD 
FOReign exchange eaRningS anD 
OutgO

 The particulars in respect of conservation of energy, 
technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings 
and outgo, as required under Section 134(3)(m) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is given in annexure v.

34. DetailS OF SigniFicant anD 
MateRial ORDeRS PaSSeD By 
the RegulatORS OR cOuRtS OR 
tRiBunalS iMPacting the gOing 
cOnceRn StatuS anD cOMPany’S 
OPeRatiOnS in FutuRe

 There are no significant and material orders passed 
by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunal which would 
impact the going concern status of the Company and 
its future operations.

35.  DetailS in ReSPect OF aDequacy 
OF inteRnal Financial cOntROlS 
with ReFeRence tO the Financial 
StateMentS

 Your Company has in place adequate system of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, commensurate with the size, scale 
and complexity of its operations. Your Company 
uses various industry standard systems to enable, 
empower and engender businesses and also to 
maintain its Books of Accounts. The transactional 
controls built into these systems ensure appropriate 
segregation of duties, the appropriate level 
of approval mechanisms and maintenance of 
supporting records.

 Assessment of the internal financial controls 
environment of the Company was undertaken during 
the year which covered verification of entity level 
controls, process level controls and IT controls, 
identification, assessment and definition of key 
business processes and analysis of risk control 
matrices, etc. The risk control matrices are reviewed 
on a yearly basis and control measures are tested 
and documented on a quarterly basis. Reasonable 
Financial Controls are operative for all the business 
activities of the Company and no material weakness in 
the design or operation of any control was observed.

 Nonetheless your Company recognises that any 
internal control framework, no matter how well 
designed, has inherent limitations and accordingly, 
regular audits and review processes ensure that 
such systems are reinforced on an ongoing basis.

 The audit committee reviews reports submitted by 
the management and audit reports submitted by 
internal auditors and statutory auditors. Suggestions 
for improvement are considered and the audit 
committee follows up on corrective action. The 
audit committee also meets Company’s statutory 
auditors to ascertain, inter alia, their views on 
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the adequacy of internal control systems and 
keeps the board of directors informed of its major 
observations periodically.

 The management has assessed the effectiveness 
of the company’s internal control over financial 
reporting as of March 31, 2020.

 M/s. Mukund M. Chitale, the statutory auditors of 
your Company have audited the financial statements 
included in this annual report and have issued 
a report on the internal financial control over 
financial reporting (as defined in section 143 of 
Companies Act 2013).

 Based on its evaluation (as defined in section 177 
of Companies Act 2013), the audit committee 
has concluded that, as of March 31, 2020, our 
internal financial controls were adequate and 
operating effectively.

36. RePORting OF FRauDS
 There are no frauds on or by the Company which were 

required to be reported by the Statutory Auditors of 
the Company to the Central Government.

37. Maintenance OF cOSt RecORDS
 The Company is not required to maintain Cost 

Records pursuant to section 148(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with applicable Rules.

38. SecRetaRial auDitOR
 The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed 

Messrs. Siroya & BA, Associates, Company 
Secretaries, to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the 
Company pursuant to the provisions of section 204 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014. The secretarial audit 

report issued for the F.Y. 2019-20, do not contain 
any qualifications, reservations, or adverse remarks 
or disclaimer. In accordance with the provisions of 
sub-section (1) of section 204, the Secretarial Audit 
Report for the Financial Year 2019-20 is appended 
to this Report as annexure vi.

39. acKnOwleDgeMentS

 Your Directors take this opportunity to express their 
deep sense of gratitude to the Insurance Regulatory 
and Development Authority of India (IRDAI) for their 
continuous support and guidance rendered to the 
Company. Your Directors would also like to thank 
the Company’s customers, employees, business 
partners, vendors and investors for their continuous 
support. Your Directors truly appreciate and value 
the contributions made by each and every member 
of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Rajeev Dubey
Chairman

Mumbai, May 8, 2020
Registered Office:

Mahindra Towers,

P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli,

Mumbai – 400 018

CIN: U65990MH1987PLC042609

Tel: +91 22 6642 3800

Fax: +91 22 2491 5894

E-mail: insurance.care@mahindra.com

Website:www.mahindrainsurance.com
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1) Brief outline of the company’s cSR policy including overview of projects or programs proposed to 
be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the cSR policy and projects or programs

 The objective of Company’s CSR policy is to continuously and consistently generate goodwill in communities 
where the Company operates or is likely to operate, initiate projects that benefit communities and encourage an 
increased commitment from employees towards CSR activities and volunteering.

 The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (‘CSR Committee’) is responsible to formulate and recommend 
to the Board the CSR Policy indicating the activities falling within the purview of Schedule VII to the Companies 
Act, 2013, to be undertaken by the Company, to recommend the amount to be spent on CSR activities presented 
by the CSR Council and to monitor the CSR Policy periodically. The CSR Council will be supported by the CSR 
Secretariat at Head Office, for implementation of the approved projects. For achieving the CSR objectives through 
implementation of meaningful and sustainable CSR Projects, the CSR Committee will allocate for its Annual CSR 
Budget, 2% of the average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding Financial 
Years, calculated in accordance with the relevant Sections of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.

 The Company has identified following CSR Thrust areas for undertaking CSR projects or programs or activities 
in India. The actual distribution of the expenditure among these thrust areas will depend upon the local needs as 
may be determined by the need identification studies or discussions with local government/ Grampanchayat/ 
NGOs. The Company shall give preference to the local area and areas around which the Company operates.

 thrust areas:
 a) education
  Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills especially among 

children, women, elderly and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects.

 b) health
  Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting health care including preventive health care and 

sanitation and making available safe drinking water.

 c) environment
  Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna, animal welfare, agro 

forestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of soil, air and water.

 d) Others
  Any other activities within the purview of schedule VII of the Act that the CSR Committee of the Company 

may define from time to time.

 cSR activities of the company are carried through:
	 •	 K	C	Mahindra	Education	Trust

	 •	 Collaboration	with	other	Companies	undertaking	projects/programs	in	CSR	activities.

	 •	 Contribution	/	donation	made	to	such	other	Organizations/	Institutions	as	may	be	permitted	under	the	
applicable laws from time-to-time.

	 •	 Directly	by	the	Company	for	fulfilling	its	responsibilities	towards	various	stakeholders.

 The Company has framed a CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the same is placed on the Company’s website at the web link: https://www.mahindrainsurance.com/Social-
Responsibility.aspx

annexuRe i tO the DiRectORS’ RePORt

annual Report on corporate Social Responsibility activities as prescribed under section 135 of the 
companies act, 2013 and companies (corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014

annual cSR Report
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2) Composition of the CSR Committee 1. Mr. Rajeev Dubey (Chairman)

2. Mr. Ramesh Iyer (Non-Executive & 
Non-Independent Director)

3. Mr. V. Ravi (Non-Executive & 
Non-Independent Director)

4. Ms. Anjali Raina (Independent Director)

5. Dr. Jaideep Devare (Managing Director)

3) Average Net Profit of the Company for last 3 Financial Years Rs. 9,035.61 lakhs

4) Prescribed CSR expenditure (2% of this amount as 
in item 3 above)

Rs. 180.71  lakhs

5) Details of CSR spent for the Financial Year: 2019-20

 a) total amount spent for the Financial Year

 b) Amount unspent, if any;

 c) Manner in which the amount spent during the Financial 
Year is detailed below

Rs. 185.20 lakhs

Nil

The details in which the amount is spent is given in 
Schedule A below

6) In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent 
of the average net profit of the last three Financial Years or 
any part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for 
not spending the amount in its Board report

N.A.

7) The CSR Committee of the Company confirms that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in 
compliance with the CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.
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as on the Financial year ended on March 31, 2020
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014]

i. RegiStRatiOn anD OtheR DetailS:
i) CIN U65990MH1987PLC042609

ii) Registration Date 18/02/1987

iii) Name of the Company Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company Public Limited Company by Shares

v) Address of the Registered office and contact details Mahindra Towers, 4th Floor, P. K. Kurne Chowk,  
Worli, Mumbai - 400018.
Tel: +91 22 66423800; Fax: +91 22 24915894;
E-mail: insurance.care@mahindra.com
Website: www.mahindrainsurance.com

vi) Whether listed company Yes / No No

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and 
Transfer Agent, if any

KFin Technologies Private Limited 
Selenium Tower B, Plot Nos. 31 & 32, Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Serilingampally Mandal,
Hyderabad – 500032, India

ii. PRinciPal BuSineSS activitieS OF the cOMPany
 All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl. 
no.

name and Description of  
main products / services

nic code of the  
Product/ service

% to total turnover  
of the company

1. Insurance Broking 67200 100%

iii. PaRticulaRS OF hOlDing, SuBSiDiaRy anD aSSOciate cOMPanieS

Sr. 
no

name and address of the company cin/gln
holding/  

Subsidiary/ 
associate

% of shares  
held

applicable 
Section

1. Mahindra & Mahindra Limited
Gateway Building, Apollo Bunder, 
Mumbai – 400 001.

L65990MH1945PLC004558 Ultimate  
Holding  

Company

80.00%* Section 2(46)

2. Mahindra & Mahindra Financial 
Services Limited
Gateway Building, Apollo Bunder, 
Mumbai – 400 001

L65921MH1991PLC059642 Holding  
Company

80.00% Section 2(46)

  * There is no direct shareholding in the Company by Mahindra & Mahindra Limited, the Ultimate Holding Company. Shares are held 
through Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited, subsidiary of Mahindra & Mahindra Limited.

annexuRe ii tO the DiRectORS’ RePORt 
Form no. Mgt-9
extRact OF annual RetuRn
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iv.  ShaRe hOlDing PatteRn (equity ShaRe caPital BReaKuP aS PeRcentage 
OF tOtal equity)

i) category-wise Share holding

category of Shareholders

no. of Shares held at the beginning of the year  
(as on april 1, 2019)

no. of Shares held at the end of the year  
(as on March 31, 2020) % 

change
during 

the yearDemat Physical total
% of total 

Shares
Demat Physical total

% of
total

Shares

a. Promoters
(1) indian
a) Individual/HUF - - - - - - - - -
b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
c) State Govt (s) - - - - - - - - -
d) Bodies Corporate 82,47,424 - 82,47,424 80.00 82,47,424 - 82,47,424 80.00 -
e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
f) Any Other - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A) (1):- 82,47,424 - 82,47,424 80.00 82,47,424 - 82,47,424 80.00 -
(2) Foreign
a) NRIs - Individuals - - - - - - - - -
b) Other - Individuals - - - - - - - - -
c) Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - - -
d) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
e) Any Other - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A) (2):- - - - - - - - - -
Total shareholding of 
Promoter (A) = (A)
(1)+(A)(2)

82,47,424 - 82,47,424 80.00 82,47,424 - 82,47,424 80.00 -

B. Public Shareholding
1. institutions
a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - -
b) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -
e) Venture Capital 

Funds
- - - - - - - - -

f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -
g) FIIs - - - - - - - - -
h)  Foreign Venture 

Capital Funds
- - - - - - - - -

i) Others (specify) 20,61,856 - 20,61,856 20.00 20,61,856 - 20,61,856 20.00 -
Sub-total (B)(1):- 20,61,856 - 20,61,856 20.00 20,61,856 - 20,61,856 20.00 -
2. non-institutions
a) Bodies corporate
i) Indian - - - - - - - - -
ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -
b)  individuals - - - - - - - - -
i)  Individual 

shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
upto Rs. 1 lakh

- - - - - - - - -

ii)  Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
in excess of Rs. 1 
lakh

- - - - - - - - -

c) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (B)(2):- - - - - - - - - -
Total Public 
Shareholding (B)=(B)
(1)+(B)(2)

20,61,856 - 20,61,856 20.00 20,61,856 - 20,61,856 20.00 -

c. Shares held 
by custodian 
for gDRs & aDRs

- - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C) 1,03,09,280 - 1,03,09,280 100.00 1,03,09,280 - 1,03,09,280 100.00 -
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl.
no.

Shareholder’s
name

Shareholding at the beginning of the year 
(as on april 1, 2019)

Shareholding at the end of the year  
(as on March 31, 2020)

% change
in shareholding 
during the yearno. of

shares

% of
total shares 

of the 
company

%of shares
pledged /

encumbered
to total 
shares

no. of
shares

% of
total 

shares 
of the 

company

%of shares
pledged /

encumbered
to total 
shares

1. Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services 
Limited

82,47,304 80.00 Nil 82,47,304 80.00 Nil -

2. Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services 
Limited Jointly with 
Mr. Ramesh Iyer

20 - Nil 20 - Nil -

3. Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services 
Limited Jointly with 
Mr. Rajeev Dubey

20 - Nil 20 - Nil -

4. Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services 
Limited Jointly with 
Dr. Jaideep Devare   

20 - Nil 20 - Nil -

5. Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services 
Limited Jointly with 
Mr. S. Durgashankar   

20 - Nil 20 - Nil -

6. Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services 
Limited Jointly with 
Mr. Venkatraman Ravi

20 - Nil 20 - Nil -

7. Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services 
Limited Jointly with 
Mr. Rajesh Vasudevan

20 - Nil 20 - Nil -

Total 82,47,424 80.00 Nil 82,47,424 80.00 Nil -

(iii) change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. 
no.

Shareholder’s name

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year  
(as on april 1, 2019) increase/ 

Decrease in 
no. of shares

cumulative shareholding 
during the year

no. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
company

no. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
company

1. Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services 
Limited along with joint holders
At the beginning of the year( As at April 1, 
2019)

82,47,424 80.00 0 82,47,424 80.00

Increase/Decrease - - - - -
At the end of the year( As at March 31, 
2020)

82,47,424 80.00 0 82,47,424 80.00
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(iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and holders of 
gDRs and aDRs):

Sl. 
no.

For each of the top 10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year (as on april 1, 2019) increase/ 

Decrease in 
no. of shares

cumulative shareholding during 
the year

no. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
company

no. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
company

1. Inclusion Resources Private Limited

At the beginning of the year  
(As at April 1, 2019)

20,61,856 20.00 0 20,61,856 20.00

Increase/Decrease - - - - -

At the end of the year  
(As at March 31, 2020)

20,61,856 20.00 0 20,61,856 20.00

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. 
no.

For each of the directors
and KMP

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year  
(as on april 1, 2019)

cumulative Shareholding
during the year

no. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
company

no. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
company

1. Mr. Ramesh Iyer (jointly with Mahindra & Mahindra Financial 
Services Limited)

At the beginning of the year
( As at April 1, 2019)

20 - 20 -

Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

No change during the year

At the end of the year
( As at March 31, 2020)

20 - 20 -

2. Mr. V. Ravi  (jointly with Mahindra & Mahindra Financial 
Services Limited)

At the beginning of the year
( As at April 1, 2019)

20 - 20 -

Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

No change during the year

At the end of the year
( As at March 31, 2020)

20 - 20 -

3. Mr. Rajeev Dubey (jointly with Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services Limited)

At the beginning of the year
( As at April 1, 2019)

20 - 20 -

Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

No change during the year

At the end of the year
( As at March 31, 2020)

20 - 20 -
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Sl. 
no.

For each of the directors
and KMP

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year  
(as on april 1, 2019)

cumulative Shareholding
during the year

no. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
company

no. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
company

4. Dr. Jaideep Devare (jointly with Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services Limited)

At the beginning of the year
( As at April 1, 2019)

20 - 20 -

Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

No change during the year

At the end of the year
( As at March 31, 2020)

20 - 20 -

5. Mr. Hemant Sikka

At the beginning of the year
( As at April 1, 2019)

Nil - Nil -

Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

No change during the year

At the end of the year
( As at March 31, 2020)

Nil - Nil -

6. Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar@

At the beginning of the year
( As at April 1, 2019)

Nil - Nil -

Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

No change during the year

At the end of the year
( As at March 31, 2020)

Nil - Nil -

7. Ms. Anjali Raina

At the beginning of the year
( As at April 1, 2019)

Nil - Nil -

Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

No change during the year

At the end of the year
( As at March 31, 2020)

Nil - Nil -

8. Mr. Derek Nazareth

At the beginning of the year
( As at April 1, 2019)

Nil - Nil -

Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

No change during the year

At the end of the year
( As at March 31, 2020)

Nil - Nil -

9. Mr. Jyotin Mehta#

At the beginning of the year
( As at April 1, 2019)

Nil - Nil -

Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

No change during the year

At the end of the year
( As at March 31, 2020)

Nil - Nil -
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Sl. 
no.

For each of the directors
and KMP

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year  
(as on april 1, 2019)

cumulative Shareholding
during the year

no. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
company

no. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
company

10. Ms. Rupa Joshi -  Company Secretary

At the beginning of the year
( As at April 1, 2019)

Nil - Nil -

Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

No change during the year

At the end of the year
( As at March 31, 2020)

Nil - Nil -

11. Mr. Saurabh V. Dharadhar- Chief Financial Officer

At the beginning of the year
( As at April 1, 2019)

Nil - Nil -

Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

No change during the year

At the end of the year
( As at March 31, 2020)

Nil - Nil -

@Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar ceased to be a Director of the Company with effect from March 30, 2020.

#Mr. Jyotin Mehta was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from March 30, 2020.

v. inDeBteDneSS
 indebtedness of the company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Rs. In lakhs

Secured loans 
excluding 
deposits

unsecured loans Deposits
total  

indebtedness

indebtedness at the beginning of the Financial year 
(april 1, 2019)

i. Principal Amount -- -- -- --

ii. Interest due but not paid -- -- -- --

iii. Interest accrued but not due -- -- -- --

Total (i+ii+iii) -- -- -- --

change in indebtedness during the Financial year

Addition -- -- -- --

Reduction -- -- -- --

Net Change -- -- -- --

indebtedness at the end of the Financial year 
(March 31, 2020)

i. Principal Amount -- -- -- --

ii. Interest due but not paid -- -- -- --

iii. Interest accrued but not due -- -- -- --

Total (i+ii+iii) -- -- -- --



22

INSURANCE BROKERS Annual Report 2019-20

BOaRD’S RePORt

vi. ReMuneRatiOn OF DiRectORS anD Key ManageRial PeRSOnnel
a. Remuneration to Managing Director, whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Sl. 
no.

Particulars of Remuneration

name of MD/wtD/Manager

total amountManaging Director
Dr. Jaideep Devare

whole time 
Director

Manager

1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 
17(1) of the Income-tax Act,1961 #

314.65 -- -- 314.65

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961@

35.24 -- -- 35.24

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 
of the Income-tax Act, 1961

-- -- -- --

2. Stock Option -- -- -- --

3. Sweat Equity -- -- -- --

4. Commission
- as % of profit
- others

-- -- -- --

5. Others -- -- -- --

Total (A) 349.89 -- -- 349.89

Ceiling as per the Act 5% of the Net Profits equivalent to Rs. 390.22 lakhs with respect to the 
ceiling for the Company applicable for the Financial Year covered by this 
Report.

# Includes Payment towards Employees’ Phantom Stock Option Plan 2019 (EPSOP)

@ Includes Perquisite Value of Stock Options of Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited for 8337 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each 
exercised during the Financial Year 2019-20.

B. Remuneration to other directors:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars of Remuneration total amount

1. independent Directors
Mr. nityanath 

ghanekar
Ms. anjali Raina Mr. Jyotin Mehta

  Fee for attending board / 
committee meetings

3.70 3.40 0.00 7.10

  Commission 7.00 7.00 0.00 14.00

  Others 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total (1) 10.70 10.40 0.00 21.10

2. Other non-executive Directors Mr. Rajeev Dubey Mr. Ramesh iyer Mr. v. Ravi Mr. hemant Sikka

Fee for attending board / committee 
meetings

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Commission 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Others# 9.90 99.00 9.90 9.90 128.70

Total (2) 9.90 99.00 9.90 9.90 128.70

Total (B)=(1+2) 149.80

Total Managerial Remuneration 149.80

Overall Ceiling as per the Act 11% of the Net profits together with the Managing Director equivalent to Rs. 858.47 
lakhs with respect to the ceiling for the Company applicable for the Financial Year 
covered by this Report.

# Payment towards Employees’ Phantom Stock Option Plan 2019 (EPSOP)
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c. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD / Manager/ wtD:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Sl. 
no.

Particulars of remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

ceO
company 

Secretary@
Ms. Rupa Joshi

cFO#
Mr. Saurabh v. 

Dharadhar
total

1. Gross salary --

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of 
the Income-tax Act,1961

-- 4.94 136.59 141.53

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income-tax Act, 
1961

-- -- 0.57 0.57

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961

-- -- -- --

2. Stock Option -- -- -- --

3. Sweat Equity -- -- -- --

4. Commission -- -- -- --

- as % of profit

- others

5. Others * -- 3.31 -- 3.31

Total -- 8.25 137.16 145.41

@ Secretarial function covered under cost sharing arrangement.

# Includes Payment towards Employees’ Phantom Stock Option Plan 2019 (EPSOP).

*Payment towards Employees’ Phantom Stock Option Plan 2019 (EPSOP)

vii. PenaltieS / PuniShMent/ cOMPOunDing OF OFFenceS:

type
Section of the 

companies act
Brief

Description

Details of 
Penalty /

Punishment/ 
compounding 
fees imposed

authority
[RD / nclt/ 

cOuRt]

appeal made,
if any

(give details)

a. cOMPany
None Penalty

 Punishment

 Compounding

B. DiRectORS
None Penalty

 Punishment

 Compounding

c. OtheR OFFiceRS in DeFault

None
 Penalty

 Punishment

 Compounding

For and on behalf of the Board

Rajeev Dubey 
Chairman

Mumbai, May 8, 2020
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Prelude
Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited (“Company”) is a composite insurance broking company registered with the 
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (‘IRDAI’), and is engaged in providing direct insurance 
broking for Corporate and Retail customers and offers a range of products for the Non-Life and Life segments. 
The company is also engaged in the business of reinsurance broking wherein it caters to insurance requirements of 
insurance companies.

This Policy shall be effective from the Financial Year 2014 - 15.

intent of the Policy
The intent of the Remuneration Policy of Directors of the Company is to focus on enhancing the value and to attract 
and retain quality individuals with requisite knowledge and excellence as Executive and Non-Executive Directors for 
achieving objectives of the Company and to place the Company in a leading position.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Board shall, while formulating the policy ensure that —

a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors 
of the quality required to run the company successfully;

b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

c) remuneration to Directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between 
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the 
company and its goals.

While deciding the policy on remuneration of Directors the Committee may consider amongst other things, the duties 
and responsibilities cast by the Companies Act, 2013, various Codes of Conduct, Articles of Association, restrictions 
on the remuneration to Directors as also the remuneration drawn by Directors of other companies in the industry, 
the valuable contributions and inputs from Directors based on their knowledge, experience and expertise in shaping 
the destiny of the Company etc. The Policy is guided by a reward framework and set of principles and objectives as 
more fully and particularly envisaged under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and principles pertaining to 
qualifications, positive attributes, integrity and independence of Directors, etc.

Directors
The Managing Director is an executive of the Company and draws remuneration from the Company. The Non-Executive 
Chairman and Independent Directors may receive sitting fees for attending the meeting of the Board and the 
Committees thereof, if fixed by the Board of Directors from time to time subject to statutory provisions. The 
Non-Executive Chairman and Independent Directors would be entitled to the remuneration under the Companies Act, 
2013. A Non-Executive Chairman and Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors who receive remuneration from the 
holding company or a Group Company will not be paid any sitting fees or any remuneration. In addition to the above, the 
Directors are entitled for reimbursement of expenses incurred in discharge of their duties. Payment of Remuneration 
to Nominee Directors shall be governed by the agreement with the Financial Institution/Bank appointing the Nominee 
Director and by the Articles of Association of the Company.

The Managing Director and other eligible Director(s) as per extant statutory provisions may be granted Employees 
Stock Options, Stock Appreciation Rights or any other Share based Employee benefits pursuant to any scheme that 
may be approved by the Board of Directors and shareholders of the Company subject to such other approvals as 
may be required.

Non-Executive Directors may be paid remuneration either by way of monthly payment or at a specified percentage of net 
profits of the Company or partly by one way and partly by another, subject to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

The NRC while determining the remuneration shall ensure that the level and composition of remuneration to be 
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the person to ensure the quality required to run the 
Company successfully. While considering the remuneration, the NRC shall also ensure a balance between fixed and 
performance-linked variable pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working 
of the Company and its goals.

annexuRe iii-a tO the DiRectORS’ RePORt
POlicy On ReMuneRatiOn OF DiRectORS
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The NRC shall consider that a successful Remuneration Policy must ensure that some part of the remuneration is 
linked to the achievement of corporate performance targets.

Managing Director/executive Directors
The term of office and remuneration of Managing Director/Executive Directors are subject to the approval of the 
Board of Directors, Shareholders and other Statutory Authorities as may be required and the limits laid down under 
the Companies Act, 2013 from time to time.

If, in any Financial Year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay, subject to the 
requisite approvals, remuneration to its Managing Director/Executive Directors in accordance with the provisions 
of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

If any Managing Director/Executive Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any such 
sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 or without the approval of shareholders, where 
required, he/she shall refund such sums to the Company within 2 years or such lesser period as may be allowed by 
the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive recovery 
of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the Shareholders by Special Resolution.

Remuneration of the Managing Director/Executive Directors reflects the overall remuneration philosophy and guiding 
principle of the Company. While considering the appointment and remuneration of Managing Director/Executive 
Directors, the NRC shall consider the industry benchmarks, merit and seniority of the person and shall ensure that 
the remuneration proposed to be paid is commensurate with the remuneration packages paid to similar senior level 
counterpart(s) in other companies.

Remuneration for Managing Director/Executive Director is designed subject to the limits laid down under the 
Companies Act, 2013 to remunerate them fairly and responsibly. The remuneration to the Managing Director/
Executive Director comprises of salary, perquisites and performance based incentive apart from retirement benefits 
like Provident Fund, Superannuation, Gratuity, Leave Encashment, etc., as per Rules of the Company. Salary is paid 
within the range approved by the Shareholders. Increments are effective annually, as recommended / approved by 
the NRC/ Board. In terms of the shareholders' approval, the Commission may be paid to Managing Director in any 
Financial Year at a rate not exceeding 1/4% (one fourth percent) per annum of the profits of the Company computed 
in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as may be recommended by NRC and 
approved by the Board.

The total remuneration will have a flexible component with a bouquet of allowances to enable the Managing Director/
Executive Director to choose the allowances as well as the quantum based on laid down limits as per Company policy. 
The flexible component can be varied only once annually.

The actual pay-out of variable component of the remuneration will be a function of individual performance as well 
as business performance. Business performance is evaluated using a Balanced Score Card (BSC) while individual 
performance is evaluated on Key Result Areas (KRA). Both the BSC and KRAs are evaluated at the end of the fiscal 
to arrive at the BSC rating of the business and performance rating of the individual.

Remuneration also aims to motivate the Personnel to deliver Company's key business strategies, create a strong 
performance-oriented environment and reward achievement of meaningful targets over the short and long-term.

The Managing Director/Executive Directors are entitled to customary non-monetary benefits such as company 
cars, health care benefits, leave travel, communication facilities, etc., as per policies of the Company. The Managing 
Director and Executive Directors are entitled to grant of Stock Options as per the approved Stock Options Schemes 
of the Company from time to time.

Disclosures
Information on the total remuneration of members of the Company's Board of Directors, Managing Director/Executive 
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel/Senior Management Personnel may be disclosed in the Board’s Report as 
per statutory requirements laid down in this regard.
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ReMuneRatiOn POlicy FOR KMP’S anD eMPlOyeeS

This Policy shall be effective from the Financial Year 2014-15.

Objective
To establish guidelines for remunerating employees fairly and in keeping with statutes.

Definition(s)
“Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) as defined in section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013 means:

(i) the Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or Manager;

(ii) the Company Secretary;

(iii) the Whole-time Director;

(iv) the Chief Financial Officer; and

(v) such other officer as may be prescribed.

Standard
The broad structure of compensation payable to employees is as under:

 Fixed pay which has components like basic salary & other allowances / flexi pay as per the grade where the 
employees can chose allowances from bouquet of options.

 Variable pay (to certain grades) in the form of annual / half yearly performance pay based on Key Result Areas 
agreed – as applicable.

 Incentives either monthly or quarterly based on targets in the lower grades.

 Retirals such as Provident Fund, Gratuity & Superannuation (for certain grades).

 Benefits such as Employee Stock Option scheme, car scheme, medical & dental benefit, loans, insurance, 
telephone reimbursements, etc., as per grades.

increments
Salary increase is given to eligible employees based on position, performance & market dynamics as decided 
from time to time.

For and on behalf of the Board

Rajeev Dubey 
Chairman

Mumbai, May 8, 2020
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Statutory reportS – Board’S report

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the act and Rule 8(2) of the companies 
(accounts) Rules, 2014.)
Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transaction 
under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis- Nil

2. Details of Material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis:

Sr. 
no.

name (s) of the 
related party

nature of 
relationship

nature of 
contracts/

arrangements/
transaction

Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements  or transaction including 

the value, if any

amount 
(Rs. in lakhs)

Date of 
approval by 
the Board

1 Mahindra & 
Mahindra 
Financial Services 
Limited (MMFSL)

Holding 
Company

Income-Handling 
charges

Handling charges towards insurance 
related services provided to MMFSL 
on the vehicles financed and 
hypothecated in favour of MMFSL

5,799.83 Lakhs -

For and on behalf of the Board

Rajeev Dubey 
Chairman

Mumbai, May 8, 2020

annexuRe iv tO the DiRectORS RePORt
FORM nO. aOc -2
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information pursuant to section 134(3)(m) of the companies act, 2013, read with the Rule 8 (3) of the 
companies (accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption and 
foreign exchange earnings and outgo

(a) conservation of energy-
 i. the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy;

  The operations of your Company are not energy intensive. However, adequate measures have been initiated 
to reduce energy consumption

 ii. the steps taken by the company for utilising alternate sources of energy – Nil

 iii. the capital investment on energy conservation equipments – Not Applicable

(B) technology absorption-
 i the efforts made towards technology absorption – None.

 ii the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution 
– Not applicable.

 iii in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the 
Financial Year)

a) the details of technology imported : Not applicable

b) the year of import; : Not applicable

c) whether the technology been fully absorbed; : Not applicable

d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the 
reasons thereof;

: None

 iv the expenditure incurred on Research and Development – Nil.

(c) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo
 The information on foreign exchange earnings and outgo is furnished in the Notes to the Accounts.

For and on behalf of the Board

Rajeev Dubey 
Chairman

Mumbai, May 8, 2020
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Statutory reportS – Board’S report

To,
The Members,
Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance 
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by Mahindra Insurance Brokers 
Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit 
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable 
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company books, 
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also the 
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, 
the Company has, during the audit period covering the 
financial year ended on March 31, 2020, complied with 
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms 
and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2020 
according to the relevant and applicable provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules 
made thereunder, as may be applicable;

(ii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and 
the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings 
(Not applicable during the year); and

(iii) Based on the representation made by the Company 
and its officers and our verification of the relevant 
records on test check basis, the Company has 
adequate system and process in place for compliance 
under the following laws applicable specifically 
to the Company:

 (i) Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority 
of India (Insurance Brokers) Regulations, 2018.

annexuRe vi tO the DiRectORS’ RePORt

We have also examined compliance with the applicable 
clauses of the following:

1. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India, and

2. Listing Agreement/LODR: The Company is an 
unlisted Company and therefore compliance with 
listing agreement is not applicable.

During the period under review, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above, to the 
extent applicable. During the year, the Company has 
received Show Cause Notices from various regulatory 
authorities and the Company has responded to all the 
notices and the Company has not received any further 
response thereon from any such authorities.

We further report that the Board of the Company is duly 
constituted with proper balance of Executive Director, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. 
During the year, the Company has re-appointed Dr. Jaideep 
Devare as the Managing Director of the Company w.e.f. 
January 01, 2020; re-appointed Ms. Anjali Raina as an 
Independent Director w.e.f. March 30, 2020; appointed 
Mr. Jyotin Mehta as an Independent Director w.e.f. March 
30, 2020; and Mr. Nityanath Purushottam Ghanekar, 
Independent Director , retired as a Director w.e.f. 
March 30, 2020.

Adequate notice was given to all the Directors to schedule 
the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system 
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting 
and for meaningful participation & deliberations at 
these meetings.

During the period under review, decisions were carried 
through unanimously and no dissenting views were 
observed, while reviewing the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and 
processes in the Company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the Company in order to monitor and 
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations 
and guidelines.

Form no. MR-3

SecRetaRial auDit RePORt
FOR the Financial yeaR enDeD MaRch 31, 2020

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
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We further report that during the audit period,

(i) Members at their Annual General Meeting held on July 
18, 2019, inter-alia, approved the Payment of Dividend 
of Rs. 7.50/- per Equity Share out of the profits for 
the year ended March 31, 2019 on 1,03,09,280 fully 
paid-up Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each.

(ii) Members at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held 
on November 11, 2019, approved the re-appointment 
of Dr. Jaideep Devare as the Managing Director 
of the Company w.e.f. January 01, 2020 for a 
period of five years.

(iii) Members at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting 
held on March 18, 2020 approved the following:

 a) Re-appointment of Ms. Anjali Raina as an 
Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 
March 30, 2020; and

 b) Appointment of Mr. Jyotin Mehta as an 
Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 
March 30, 2020.

For Siroya and BA Associates 
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Bhavyata Raval
Partner

ACS No.: 25734
CP No.: 21758

UDIN.: A025734B000214111

Date: May, 8, 2020
Place: Mumbai

Note: This Report is to be read with our letter of even date 
which is annexed as ‘Annexure A’ herewith and forms an 
integral part of this report.



31

C
or

po
ra

te
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 R

ep
or

ts
Fi

na
nc

ia
l S

ta
te

m
en

ts

Statutory reportS – Board’S report

‘To,
The Members,
Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these Secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure 
that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts 
of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management’s representation about the compliance of laws, rules 
and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of 
the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of the procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

7. In view of the restrictions imposed by the Government of India on movement of people across India to contain the 
spread of Covid-19 pandemic, which led to the complete lockdown across the nation, we have relied on electronic 
data for verification of certain records as the physical verification was not possible.

For Siroya and BA Associates 
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Bhavyata Raval
Partner

ACS No.: 25734
CP No.: 21758

UDIN.: A025734B000214111
Date: May, 08, 2020
Place: Mumbai

annexuRe a’
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To the Members of 
Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited 
Report on the Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements

1. OpInIOn
 We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial 

statements of Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited 
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet 
as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), 
the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement 
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and 
notes to the Ind AS financial statements including a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as 
“Ind AS financial statements”).

 In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act) in the manner so required and give a true 
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the 
Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2020, its profit, total comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the 
year ended on that date.

2. BasIs fOr OpInIOn
 We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial 

statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the 
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion on Ind AS financial statements.

3. InfOrMatIOn Other than the Ind 
as fInancIaL stateMents and 
audItOr’s repOrt thereOn

 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for 
the preparation of the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in 
the Directors Report, Corporate Governance Report 
and Management Discussion and Analysis, but does 
not include the Ind AS financial statements and 
our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is 
expected to be made available to us after the date 
of our auditor’s report.

 Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does 
not cover the other information and we will not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

 In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above when it becomes 
available and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with 
the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.

 When we read the other information included 
in the above reports, if we conclude that there is 
material misstatement therein, we are required 
to communicate the matter to those charged with 
governance and determine the actions under the 
applicable laws and regulations.

4. ManageMent’s respOnsIBILIty 
fOr the Ind as fInancIaL 
stateMents

 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 
for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS 
financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance, 
total comprehensive income, changes in equity 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Ind AS accounting standards 
specified under section 133 of the Act read with 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 as amended.

 This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS 

Independent audItOr’s repOrt
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financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.

 In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the 
Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the Board of Directors either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

 The Board of Directors are also responsible for 
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

5. audItOr’s respOnsIBILItIes fOr 
the audIt Of the Ind as fInancIaL 
stateMents

 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 
a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on 
auditing will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

 As part of an audit in accordance with Standards 
on auditing, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:

 i) Identif y and assess the risks of material 
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud 
is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control.

 ii) Obtain an understanding of internal financial 
controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 

opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

 iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

 iv) Conc lude on the appropr ia teness o f 
management’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the ability of the Company 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS 
financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as 
a going concern.

 v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure 
and content of the Ind AS financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS 
financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

 We communicate with those charged with 
governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.

 We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.

6. eMphasIs Of Matter
 We draw your attention to Note 33.4 to the Ind AS 

financial statement which explain the uncertainties 
and management’s assessment of the financial 
impact due to the lockdown and other restrictions 
imposed by the Government and condition related 
to the COVID-19 pandemic situation, for which 
definitive assessment of the impact would highly 
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depend upon circumstances as they evolve in the 
subsequent period.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

7. Other Matters:
 The figures of the Ind AS financial statements for 

the year ended and as at March 31, 2019 have 
been audited by another auditor who expressed an 
unmodified opinion on 18th April 2019.

8. repOrt On Other LegaL and 
reguLatOry requIreMents

 i) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) 
Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section 
(11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the 
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to 
the extent applicable

 ii) As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, based 
on our audit we report that:

  a) We have sought and obtained all the 
information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of our audit of 
Ind AS Financial Statements.

  b) In our opinion, proper books of account 
as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books.

  c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit 
and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income, the Statement of Cash Flow and 
the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with 
the books of account.

  d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial 
statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

  e) On the basis of written representations 
received from the directors as on March 
31, 2020, taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2020, from 
being appointed as a director in terms of 
section 164 (2) of the Act.

  f) With respect to the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating 
ef fectiveness of such controls, refer 
to our separate Report in “Annexure B” 
to this report.

  g) With respect to the other matters to 
be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with the requirements of 
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to 
us, the remuneration paid by the Company 
to its directors during the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of section 
197 of the Act.

  h) With respect to the other matters to 
be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 
amended in our opinion and to the best 
of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:

   i. The Company has disclosed the 
impact of pending litigations on the 
financial position in its Ind AS financial 
statements – Refer Note 32 to the Ind 
AS financial statements;

   ii. The Company did not have any long-
term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses; and

   iii. There has been no delay in transferring 
the amount which were required to be 
transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company.

for Mukund M. chitale & co.
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn. No. 106655W

(s. M. chitale)  
partner

M. No. 111383  
UDIN:20111383AAAACQ4034

Date: May 08, 2020  
Place: Mumbai
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Referred to in paragraph [8(i)] under Report on Other Legal 
and Regulatory Requirements of our report of even date

(i) a)  The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets.

 b) The fixed assets of the company have been 
physically verified by the Management, in the 
phased manner during the year. The company is 
in the process of reconciling the same with the 
fixed asset register. The discrepancies if any, 
arising out of reconciliation will be considered in 
the books of accounts in the period in which the 
reconciliation is complete.

 c) According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the company, there are no 
immovable properties held in the name of the 
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(c) of the 
order is not applicable to the Company.

(ii) The company is in the business of providing insurance 
broking services and does not hold any inventory. 
Therefore, the provision of paragraph 3(ii) of the said 
order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company has not granted any loans, 
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited 
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the 
register maintained under section 189 of the Act. 
Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(iii) (a) to 
(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company 
and hence not commented upon.

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or made 
any investment, or provided any guarantees or 
security to the parties covered under Section 185. 
In our opinion, and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the company has complied 

with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 in respect of loans and investments 
made, and guarantees and security provided by 
it, as applicable.

(v) According to information and explanation given to us 
the Company has not accepted any deposits within 
the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as 
amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) 
of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) According to information and explanations given to 
us by the Company it is not required to maintain cost 
records as prescribed by the Central Government 
under section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Thus the provisions on this Clause are not applicable 
to the Company.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given 
to us, in respect of statutory dues:

 a) the Company is generally regular in depositing 
with appropriate authorit ies undisputed 
statutory dues including Provident Fund, 
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales 
Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Value 
Added Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess 
and other material statutory dues applicable 
to it with the appropriate authorities as per the 
available records as far as ascertained by us on 
our verification.

 b) According to the information and explanations 
given to us, undisputed dues in respect of 
provident fund, income-tax, service tax, sales-
tax, duty of customs, value added tax, cess 
and other material statutory dues which were 
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of 
more than six months from the date they 
became payable are as follows:

name of the statue name of the states amount (Rs.)
period to which  
amount relates

due date date of payment

Profession Tax Gujarat 51,925 F.Y. 2018-2019 various date Not paid

55,200 F.Y. 2019-2020

Kerala 16,122 F.Y. 2018-2019 Not paid

46,869 F.Y. 2019-2020

Tamil Nadu 32,270 F.Y. 2018-2019 Paid on 6th May 2020

51,994 F.Y. 2019-2020

Punjab 10,800 F.Y. 2018-2019 Paid on 5th May 2020

annexure a tO the Independent audItOr’s repOrt Of even date On the Ind as 
fInancIaL stateMents Of MahIndra Insurance BrOkers LIMIted
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c) According to the records examined by us and as per the information and explanations given to us, there are no 
statutory dues outstanding as at March 31, 2020 which have not been deposited on account of disputes except 
for those stated below:

name of the statue nature of the dues amount (Rs.) period to which amount relates
forum where the dispute 

is pending

Tax Deducted at Source Interest on TDS 16,50,770 F.Y. 2011- 12 to 
F.Y. 2017-2018

Rectification filed with 
the AO

(viii) The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings 
from the financial institution, banks and government, 
and has not issued and debentures. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company.

(ix) According to the information and explanations given 
by the management, the Company has not raised any 
money by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments) or term loans and 
hence reporting under paragraph 3(ix) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company.

(x) During the course of our examination of books of 
accounts and as far as records/details made available 
and verified by us and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, two instances of fraud 
by the employee of the Company (amounting to Rs. 
0.64 lakhs which was recovered subsequently by the 
Company), was reported during the year pertaining 
to fake policy booking and collection of premium not 
deposited with the insurance company.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given 
to us, and based on our verification of records, 
the Company has paid / provided managerial 
remuneration in accordance with the requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 
read with Schedule V of the Act.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. 
Therefore, the reporting under paragraph 3(xii) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations 
given by the management, transactions with the 

related parties are in compliance with section 177 
and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details 
have been disclosed in the notes to the Ind AS 
financial statements, as required by the applicable 
accounting standards.

(xiv) During the year, the Company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or fully or partly paid convertible debentures and 
hence reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not entered into 
non-cash transactions with directors or person 
connected with them. Accordingly, provisions 
of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under 
Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
According the provisions of clause 3(xvi) of the Order 
are not applicable to the Company.

for Mukund M. chitale & co.
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn. No. 106655W

(s. M. chitale)  
partner

M. No. 111383  
UDIN:20111383AAAACQ4034

Date: May 08, 2020  
Place: Mumbai
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Referred to in paragraph [8(ii)(f)] under Report on 
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our 
report of even date

repOrt On the InternaL fInancIaL 
cOntrOLs under cLause (I) Of suB-
sectIOn 3 Of sectIOn 143 Of the 
cOMpanIes act, 2013 (“the act”)
1. We have audited the internal financial controls 

over financial reporting of Mahindra Insurance 
Broker Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 
2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS 
financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date.

ManageMent’s respOnsIBILIty fOr 
InternaL fInancIaL cOntrOLs
2. The Company’s management is responsible for 

establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India” 
(ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company’s policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

audItOrs’ respOnsIBILIty
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 

Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the 
Standards on Auditing as specified under section 
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls and both issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects.

 Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting and 
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting.

MeanIng Of InternaL fInancIaL 
cOntrOLs Over fInancIaL repOrtIng
4. A company's internal financial control over financial 

reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of 
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or t imely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent LIMItatIOns Of InternaL 
fInancIaL cOntrOLs Over fInancIaL 
repOrtIng
5. Because of the inherent limitations of internal 

financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due 
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become 

annexure B tO the Independent audItOr’s repOrt Of even date On the Ind as 
fInancIaL stateMents Of MahIndra Insurance BrOker LIMIted
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inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

OpInIOn
6. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material 

respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based 
on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 

Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

for Mukund M. chitale & co.
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn. No. 106655W

(s. M. chitale)  
partner

M. No. 111383  
UDIN:20111383AAAACQ4034

Date: May 08, 2020  
Place: Mumbai
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as at 31 March 2020
BaLance sheet

Rs.in Lakhs

notes
as at  

31 March 2020
as at  

31 March 2019

I ASSETS
1 nOn-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1  941.47  945.28 
(b) Other Intangible Assets 2  128.43  142.98 
(c) Right to use assets-Building 21  2,073.18  -   
(d) Intangible Assets Under Development  55.68  79.41 
(e) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 3  3,075.00  2,075.00 
(ii) Loans 4  16,800.00  -   
(iii) Other Financial Assets 5  157.14  164.34 

(f) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 6  472.01  392.25 
(g) Other Non-current Assets 7  865.66  268.63 
SUB-TOTAL  24,568.57  4,067.89 

2 current assets
(a) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 3  1,664.45  1,662.93 
(ii) Trade Receivables 8  5,679.77  7,607.11 
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9  1,310.24  563.36 
(iv) Loans 4  18,125.00  29,800.00 
(v) Other Financial Assets 5  1,675.25  1,478.10 

(b) Other Current Assets 7  1,399.15  1,546.85 
SUB-TOTAL  29,853.86  42,658.35 
TOTAL ASSETS  54,422.43  46,726.24 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
equIty
(a) Equity Share Capital 10  1,030.93  1,030.93 
(b) Other Equity 11  41,237.30  37,055.45 
SUB-TOTAL  42,268.23  38,086.38 
LIaBILItIes

1 nOn-current LIaBILItIes
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Other Financial Liabilities 14  1,677.25  -   
(b) Provisions 12  1,177.54  754.25 
SUB-TOTAL  2,854.79  754.25 

2 current LIaBILItIes
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Trade Payables
 (a) Micro and small enterprises 13  0.51  -   
 (b) Others 13  4,959.31  4,570.91 
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 14  516.36  26.04 

(b) Provisions 12  2,935.39  1,957.48 
(c) Other Current Liabilities 15  887.84  1,331.18 
SUB-TOTAL  9,299.41  7,885.61 
TOTAL  54,422.43  46,726.24 

The accompanying statement of accounting policies and notes 1 to 34 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

for Mukund M. chitale & co.  rajeev dubey ramesh Iyer v ravi hemant sikka Jyotin Mehta
Chartered Accountants  Chairman Director  Director Director Director
Firm Regn No. 106655W  DIN: 00104817 DIN: 00220759 DIN: 00307328 DIN: 00922281 DIN: 00033518

saurabh M chitale anjali raina derek nazareth dr Jaideep devare rupa Joshi saurabh v. dharadhar
Partner Director    Director Managing Director Company  Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 111383 DIN: 02327927 DIN: 07031760 DIN: 00009112 Mem No.: ACS 17395

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date  : May 08, 2020 Date  : May 08, 2020
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stateMent Of prOfIt and LOss
fOr year ended 31 March 2020

Rs. In lakhs

particulars note no.
year ended  

31 Mar 2020
year ended  

31 Mar 2019

I Revenue from operations 16  30,482.75  29,798.43 

II Other Income 17  3,206.13  2,537.91 

III Total Revenue (I + II)  33,688.88  32,336.34 

Iv expenses

(a) Employee benefit expense 18  12,031.14  9,102.32 

(b) Finance costs 27  183.14  -   

(c) Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,2,21  893.79  361.57 

(d) Other expenses 19  13,190.65  12,583.09 

Total Expenses [(a) + (b) + (c) + (d)]  26,298.72  22,046.98 

v profit/(loss) before tax (III - Iv)  7,390.16  10,289.36 

vI tax expense

(1) Current tax 6  2,059.00  3,188.00 

(2) Deferred tax 6  (5.03)  (48.03)

Total tax expense [(1) + (2)]  2,053.97  3,139.97 

vII profit/(loss) for the period (v-vI)  5,336.19  7,149.39 

vIII Other comprehensive income  (222.21)  (43.95)

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  -    -   

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans  (296.95)  (62.00)

(ii)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or 
loss

 74.74  18.05 

IX Total comprehensive income for the Period (VII+VIII)  5,113.98  7,105.44 

x earnings per equity share

(1) Basic 20  51.76  69.35 

(2) Diluted 20  51.76  69.35 

The accompanying statement of accounting policies and notes 1 to 34 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

for Mukund M. chitale & co.  rajeev dubey ramesh Iyer v ravi hemant sikka Jyotin Mehta
Chartered Accountants  Chairman Director  Director Director Director
Firm Regn No. 106655W  DIN: 00104817 DIN: 00220759 DIN: 00307328 DIN: 00922281 DIN: 00033518

saurabh M chitale anjali raina derek nazareth dr Jaideep devare rupa Joshi saurabh v. dharadhar
Partner Director    Director Managing Director Company  Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 111383 DIN: 02327927 DIN: 07031760 DIN: 00009112 Mem No.: ACS 17395

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date  : May 08, 2020 Date  : May 08, 2020
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stateMent Of cash fLOws
fOr year ended 31 March 2020

Rs. In lakhs

particulars note no.
year ended  

31 Mar 2020
year ended  

31 Mar 2019

cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax for the year PL  7,390.16  10,289.38 

Adjustments for: 

Investment income recognised in profit or loss  (3,191.88)  (2,536.71)

Loss / (Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 19  21.61  6.21 

Loss due to change in fair value of investments  0.51  -   

Finance Cost as per Ind AS 116  183.14  -   

Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables 8  81.46  81.25 

Actual outflow of rent  (598.92)  -   

Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets 1 & 2  893.80  361.56 

 4,779.88  8,201.69 

Movements in working capital:

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables  1,845.89  (1,103.14)

(Increase)/decrease in other assets  (137.62)  (1,058.10)

(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables  409.38  (20.38)

Increase/(decrease) in provisions  1,427.21  1,111.92 

(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities  (443.36)  255.54 

 3,101.50  (814.16)

Cash generated from operations  7,881.38  7,387.53 

Income taxes paid  (2,693.92)  (4,088.97)

net cash generated by operating activities  5,187.46  3,298.56 

cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 5  2,955.15  2,451.94 

Amounts advanced to related parties  (38,375.00)  (22,875.00)

Repayments by related parties  33,250.00  18,125.00 

Amounts advanced - other investments  (14,030.00)  (2,000.00)

Repayments - other investments  13,075.00  1,900.00 

Payments for property, plant and equipment  (330.58)  (762.05)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1  17.45  21.00 

Payments for intangible assets/intangible assets under developments  (70.48)  (120.99)

net cash (used in)/generated by investing activities  (3,508.46)  (3,260.10)

cash flows from financing activities

Expenses for issue of bonus shares  -    (10.93)

Dividends paid to owners of the Company  (932.12)  (559.28)

net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities  (932.12)  (570.21)

net increase in cash and cash equivalents  746.88  (531.75)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  563.36  1,095.11 

cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  1,310.24  563.36 
Note:
The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "indirect method" as set out in 'Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7)- Statement of Cash Flows 
The accompanying statement of accounting policies and notes 1 to 34 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

for Mukund M. chitale & co.  rajeev dubey ramesh Iyer v ravi hemant sikka Jyotin Mehta
Chartered Accountants  Chairman Director  Director Director Director
Firm Regn No. 106655W  DIN: 00104817 DIN: 00220759 DIN: 00307328 DIN: 00922281 DIN: 00033518

saurabh M chitale anjali raina derek nazareth dr Jaideep devare rupa Joshi saurabh v. dharadhar
Partner Director    Director Managing Director Company  Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 111383 DIN: 02327927 DIN: 07031760 DIN: 00009112 Mem No.: ACS 17395

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date  : May 08, 2020 Date  : May 08, 2020
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stateMent Of changes In equIty
fOr year ended 31 March 2020

a. equIty share capItaL
Rs. In lakhs

amount

as at 1 april 2018  257.73 

Changes in equity share capital during the Period  773.20 

as at 31 March 2019  1,030.93 

as at 1 april 2019  1,030.93 

Changes in equity share capital during the Period  -   

as at 31 March 2020  1,030.93 

B. Other equIty
Rs. In lakhs

reserves and surplus
Items of other 
comprehensive 

income
total

securities premium general reserve retained earnings

remeasurement 
loss (net) on 

defined benefit 
plans

as at 1 april 2018  1,589.50  1,658.43  28,193.37  (147.89)  31,293.41 

Profit / (Loss) for the Period  -    -    7,149.39  -    7,149.39 

Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)  -    (43.95)  (43.95)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year  -    -    7,149.39  (43.95)  7,105.44 

Dividend paid on Equity Shares  -    -    (463.92)  -    (463.92)

Dividend Distribution Tax  -    -    (95.36)  -    (95.36)

Transfers from retained earnings  (Issue 
of bonus shares and related expenses)

 -    -    (784.12)  -    (784.12)

as at 1 april 2019  1,589.50  1,658.43  33,999.36  (191.84)  37,055.45 

Profit / (Loss) for the Period  5,336.19  5,336.19 

Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)  -    (222.21)  (222.21)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year  -    -    5,336.19  (222.21)  5,113.98 

Dividend paid on Equity Shares  -    -    (773.20)  -    (773.20)

Dividend Distribution Tax  -    -    (158.93)  -    (158.93)

Transfers from retained earnings  -    -    -    -    -   

as at 31 March 2020  1,589.50  1,658.43  38,403.42  (414.05)  41,237.30 

The accompanying statement of accounting policies and notes 1 to 34 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

for Mukund M. chitale & co.  rajeev dubey ramesh Iyer v ravi hemant sikka Jyotin Mehta
Chartered Accountants  Chairman Director  Director Director Director
Firm Regn No. 106655W  DIN: 00104817 DIN: 00220759 DIN: 00307328 DIN: 00922281 DIN: 00033518

saurabh M chitale anjali raina derek nazareth dr Jaideep devare rupa Joshi saurabh v. dharadhar
Partner Director    Director Managing Director Company  Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 111383 DIN: 02327927 DIN: 07031760 DIN: 00009112 Mem No.: ACS 17395

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date  : May 08, 2020 Date  : May 08, 2020
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a cOMpany OvervIew
 Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited is a Public 

Limited Company incorporated and domiciled in 
India. The Company’s registered office is at Mahindra 
Towers, P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli, Mumbai - 400 
018. The Company is primarily involved in the 
business of rendering insurance broking services.

 The immediate parent Company is Mahindra & 
Mahindra Financial Services Limited and ultimate 
parent Company is Mahindra & Mahindra Limited, a 
company incorporated in Mumbai, India.

B BasIs Of preparatIOn
 The principal accounting policies applied in the 

preparation of these financial statements are set out 
below. These policies have been consistently applied 
to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

 a. statement of compliance and basis of 
preparation

  These financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from 
time to time) notified under Section 133 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') and other 
relevant provisions of the Act.

  All the assets and liabilities have been classified 
as current and non-current as per the Company's 
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out 
in the schedule III of the Act. Based on nature of 
services and the time between the acquisition of 
the assets for processing and their realisation 
in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has 
ascertained its operating cycle as up to twelve 
months for the purpose of current/non-current 
classification of assets and liabiities.

  The financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended March 31, 2020 were approved 
for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors 
on May 08, 2020.

 b. functional and presentation currency
  These financial statements are presented in 

Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the Company's 
functional currency. All amounts are rounded-off 
to the nearest lacs, unless otherwise indicated.

 c. Basis of measurement
  The financial statements have been prepared 

on the historical cost basis except for the 
following items:

Items Measurement basis

- Certain financial assets 
and liabilities which 
are generally derivative 
instruments

Fair value

- Liabilities for cash-settled 
share-based payment 
arrangements

Fair value

- Net defined benefit (asset) 
/ liability

Fair value of plan 
assets less present 
value of defined 
benefit obligations

 d. Measurement of fair values
  A number of the Company's accounting policies 

and disclosures require the measurement of fair 
values, for both financial and non-financial assets 
and liabilities.

  The Company has established policies and 
procedures with respect to the measurement 
of fair values. The Chief Financial Officer  and 
person entrusted has overall responsibility 
for overseeing all signif icant fair value 
measurements, including Level 3 fair values, 
including assessments that these valuations 
meet the requirements of Ind AS. Significant 
valuation issues are reported to audit committee.

  Fair values are categorised into different levels 
in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used 
in the valuation techniques as follows:

  - Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active 
markets for identical assets and liabilties.

  - Level 2: Inputs other than quoted 
prices included in Level 1 that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly or indirectly.

  - Level 3: Inputs for the asset ot liability that 
are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs).

 e. use of judgements and estimates
  In preparing these financial statements, 

management has made judgements, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the  application 
of the Company’s accounting policies and 
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates. Estimates and 
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are 
recognised prospectively.
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   assumptions and estimation uncertainties
  Following are areas that involved a higher degree 

of judgement or complexity in determining the 
carrying amount of some assets and liabilities. 
Detailed information about  each of these 
estimates and judgements that have a significant 
risk of resulting in material adjustment in the 
year ending March 31, 2020 is included in 
relevant notes.

  - Estimation of current tax expense and payable

  - Est imated useful l i fe of proper t y, 
plant and equipments

  - Estimated useful life of intangible assets

  - Estimation of defined benefit obligation

  - Impairment of trade receivables

  - Impairment of financial assets

  - Estimation of shared based payments

  Estimates and judgements are continually 
evaluated. They are based on historical 
experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events  that  may 
have a financial impact on the Company and 
that  are believed  to be reasonable under 
the circumstances.

c sIgnIfIcant accOuntIng pOLIcIes
 a. property, plant and equipment :
  recognition and measurement

  All the items classified under property plant 
and equipment are stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
impairment losses.

  Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment 
comprises its purchase price, including import 
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, 
after deducting trade discounts and rebates, 
any directly attributable cost of bringing the 
item to its working condition for its intended 
use and estimated cost of dismantling and 
removing the items and restoring the site on 
which it is located.

  When significant parts of an item of property, 
plant and equipment have dif ferent useful 
lives, they are depreciated for as separate 
items (major components) of property, 
plant and equipment.

  Gains or losses on disposal of an item of 
property, plant and equipment are determined 
by comparing the proceeds from disposal 
with the carrying amount of property, plant 
and equipment, and are recognized net within 
statement of profit and loss.

  subsequent costs

  The cost of replacing a part of an item of 
property, plant and equipment is recognized in 
the carrying amount of the item if it is probable 
that the future economic benefits embodied 
within the part will flow to the Company, and 
its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying 
amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

  depreciation

  Depreciation is calculated on cost of items 
of property, plant and equipment less their 
estimated residual values over their estimated 
useful lives as specified in the Schedule II of the 
Act or estimated by the management using 
straight-line method and is generally recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss except:

  i. Motor cars where useful life is estimated 
at 4 years as against 8 years per Schedule 
II since the employees to whom these cars 
have been allotted as part of their terms 
of employment are entitled to change their 
vehicles every four years, and

  ii. Property Plant & Equipmnets having value 
individually less than INR 5000 where useful 
life is estimated at less than one year having 
regard to the nature of these assets and 
the difficulty in estimating the useful life.

  Further, residual value for all assets is considered 
Nil having regard to the difficulty in reasonably 
estimating the same and, in the case of motor 
cars, having regard to terms of employment 
under which these are allotted to the employees.
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  The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods 
are as follows:

class of asset
year ended  

31 March 2020
year ended  

31 March 2019

Plant and equipment (including Computers) 2-6 years 2-6 years
Office equipments 5 years 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years 10 years
Leasehold Premises Over the period 

of lease
Over the period 

of lease
Vehicles 4 years 4 years

  Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted 
if appropriate. The effect of change in estimate of useful life is accounted on prospective basis

 b. Intangible assets :
  Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

  amortisation

  Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less 
accumalated amortisation and accumaltated impairement, if any. Amortisation of intangible assets with finite 
useful lives is calculated on cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated 
useful lives using straight-line method and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

  The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

class of asset
year ended  

31 March 2020
year ended  

31 March 2019

Computer software 3 years 3 years

  Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted 
if appropriate. The effect of change in estimate of useful life is accounted on prospective basis.

  Intangible assets under development

  The Company capitalizes intangible asset under 
development in accordance with the accounting 
policy. Initial capitalization of costs is based on 
management's judgement that technological and 
economic feasibility is confirmed.

  derecognition of intangible assets

  An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, 
or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses 
arising from derecognition of an intangible 
asset, measured as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount 
of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss 
when the asset is derecognised.

 c. Impairment of assets other than financial 
assets :

  Impairment of tangible and intangible assets 
other than goodwill

  The Company reviews the carrying amounts of 
its tangible and intangible assets at the end of 

each reporting period, to determine whether 
there is any indication that those assets have 
impaired. If any such indication exists, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in 
order to determine the extent of the impairment 
loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate 
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, 
the Company estimates the recoverable amount 
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset 
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent 
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate 
assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated 
to the smallest group of cash-generating units 
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation 
basis can be identified.

  Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and 
intangible assets not yet available for use are 
tested for impairment at least annually, and 
whenever there is an indication that the asset 
may be impaired.

  Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value 
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing 
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value in use, the estimated future cash flows 
are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset for 
which the estimates of future cash flows have 
not been adjusted.

  If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than 
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of 
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced 
to its recoverable amount. An impairment 
loss is recognised immediately in statement of 
profit and loss.

  When an impairment loss subsequently 
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset 
(or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the 
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so 
that the increased carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined had no impairment loss been 
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating 
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment 
loss is recognised immediately in statement of 
profit and loss.

 d. foreign currency :
  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated 

into the functional currency using the exchange 
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign 
exchange gains and losses resulting from the 
settlement of such transactions and from the 
translation of monetary assets  and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies at period 
end exchange rates are generally recognised 
in statement of profit and loss. They are 
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying 
cash flow hedges.

  Foreign exchange differences regarded as an 
adjustment to borrowing costs are presented 
in the statement of profit and loss, within 
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains 
and losses are presented in the statement 
of profit and loss on a net basis within other 
gains/(losses).

  Non-monetary items  that  are measured at fair 
value in a foreign currency are translated using 
the exchange rates  at the date when the fair 
value was determined. Translation differences 
on assets  and liabilities carried at fair value are 
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

 e. financial instruments :
  recognition and initial measurement

  Financial assets and financial liabilities are 
recognised when the Company becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

  Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially 
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition or 
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities 
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities 
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to 
or deducted from the fair value of the financial 
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on 
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets 
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss are recognised immediately in statement 
of profit and loss.

  classification and subsequent measurement

  financial assets
  On initial recognition, a financial asset is 

classified as measured at

  - Amortised cost;

  - fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVOCI) - debt investment;

  - fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVOCI) - equity investment;

  - fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

  Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent 
to their initial recognition, except if and in the 
period the Company changes its business model 
for managing financial assets.

  A financial asset is measured at amortised cost 
if it meets both of the following conditions and 
is not designated as at FVTPL:

  - the financial asset is held within a business 
model whose objective is to hold financial 
assets in order to collect contractual 
cash flows; and

  - the contractual terms of the financial 
asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding.
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  A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it 
meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL:

  - the financial asset is held within a business 
model whose objective is achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
financial assets; and

  - the contractual terms of the financial 
asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding.

  On initial recognition of an equity investment 
that is not held for trading, the Company 
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent 
changes in the investment's fair value in other 
comprehensive income (designated as FVOCI 
- equity investment). This election is made on 
investment-by-investment basis.

  All financial asset not classified as measured 
at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above 
are measured at fair value through profit or 
loss (FVTPL). This includes all derivative financial 
assets. On initial recognition, the Company 
may irrevocably designate a financial asset 
that otherwise meets the requirements to be 
measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI or 
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly 
reduces accounting mismatch that would 
otherwise arise.

  effective interest method

  The effective interest method is a method 
of calculating the amortised cost of a debt 
instrument and of allocating interest income 
over the relevant period. The effective interest 
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash receipts (including all fees and points 
paid or received that form an integral part of 
the effective interest rate, transaction costs 
and other premiums or discounts) through 
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, 
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net 
carrying amount on initial recognition.

  Income is recognised on an effective interest 
basis for debt instruments other than those 
f inancial assets classif ied as at FVTPL. 
Interest income is recognised in statement 
of profit and loss and is included in the “Other 
income” line item.

  Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI 
On initial recognition, the Company can make 
an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-
instrument basis) to present the subsequent 
changes in fair value in other comprehensive 
income pertaining to investments in equity 
instruments. This election is not permitted if 
the equity investment is held for trading. These 
elected investments are initially measured at fair 
value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they 
are measured at fair value with gains and losses 
arising from changes in fair value recognised in 
other comprehensive income and accumulated 
in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through 
other comprehensive income’. The cumulative 
gain or loss is not reclassified in the statement 
of profit and loss on disposal of the investments.

  a financial asset is held for trading if:
	 	 •	 it	has	been	acquired	principally	for	the	

purpose of selling it in the near term; or

	 	 •	 on	initial	recognition	it	is	part	of	a	portfolio	
of identified financial instruments that 
the Group manages together and has 
a recent actual pattern of short-term 
profit-taking; or

	 	 •	 it	is	a	derivative	that	is	not	designated	and	
effective as a hedging instrument or a 
financial guarantee.

financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss (fvtpL)

  Investments in equity instruments are classified 
as at FVTPL, unless the Group irrevocably elects 
on initial recognition to present subsequent 
changes in fair value in other comprehensive 
income for investments in equity instruments 
which are not held for trading (see note above). 
Debt instruments that do not meet the 
amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see 
above) are measured at FVTPL. In addition, 
debt instruments that meet the amortised 
cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are 
designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

  A financial asset that meets the amortised 
cost criteria or debt instruments that meet 
the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as 
at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such 
designation eliminates or significantly reduces a 
measurement or recognition inconsistency that 
would arise from measuring assets or liabilities 
or recognising the gains and losses on them on 
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different bases. The Group has not designated 
any debt instrument as at FVTPL

  Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair 
value at the end of each reporting period, with 
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement 
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or 
loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates 
any dividend or interest earned on the financial 
asset and is included in the ‘Other income’ line 
item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is 
recognised when the Company’s right to receive 
the dividends is established, it is probable that 
the economic benefits associated with the 
dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does 
not represent a recovery of part of cost of the 
investment and the amount of dividend can be 
measured reliably.

financial assets: subsequent 
measurement and gains and losses

  Financial assets at amortised cost are 
susequently measured at amortised cost using 
effective interest method. The amortised cost 
is reduced by impairment losses. Interest 
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and 
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. 
Any gain and loss derecognition is recognised 
in profit or loss.

  Debt investment at FVOCI are susequently 
measured at fair value. Interest income under 
effective interest method, foreign exchange 
gains and losses and impairment are recognised 
in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are 
recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and 
losses accumulated in OCI are reclssified to 
profit or loss.

  Equity investment at FVOCI are are susequently 
measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised 
as income in profit or loss unless the dividend 
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost 
of the investment. Other net gains and losses 
are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to 
statement of profit and loss.

  Financial assets at FVTPL are susequently 
measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, 
including any interest or dividend income, are 
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

financial liabilities and equity instruments:
  Classification as debt or equity
  Debt and equity instruments issued by the 

Company are classified as either financial 

liabilities or as equity in accordance with the 
substance of the contractual arrangements 
and the definitions of a financial liability and an 
equity instrument.

  Equity instruments
  An equity instrument is any contract that 

evidences a residual interest in the assets of an 
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity 
instruments issued by Company are recognised 
at the proceeds received. Transaction costs 
of an equity transaction are recognised as a 
deduction from equity.

  Financial liabilities
  Financial liabilities are classified as measured at 

amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is 
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-
for-trading or it is a derivative or it is designated 
as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities 
at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net 
gains and losses, including any interest expense, 
are recognised in profit or loss. The dividends on 
mandatorily redeemable preference shares are 
recognised in profit or loss as interest expense. 
Other financial liabilities are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. Interest expense and foreign 
exchange gains and losses are recognised in 
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition 
is also recognised in profit or loss.

  Compound financial instruments
  The component parts of compound instruments 

(convertible notes) issued by the Company are 
classified  separately as financial liabilities and 
equity in accordance with the substance of the 
contractual arrangements and the definitions 
of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 
A conversion option that will be settled by 
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or 
another financial asset for a fixed number of 
the Company's own equity instruments is an 
equity instrument.

  At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability 
component is estimated using the prevailing 
market interest rate for similar non-convertible 
instruments. This amount is recorded as a 
liability on an amortised cost basis using the 
effective interest method until extinguished 
upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity 
date. Interest related to the financial liability is 
recognised in profit or loss (unless it qualifies for 
inclusion in the cost of an asset).
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  Conversion option classif ied as equity is 
determined by deducting the amount of the 
liability component from the fair value of the 
compound instrument as a whole. This is 
recognised and included in equity, net of income 
tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. 
In addition, the conversion option classified as 
equity will remain in equity until the conversion 
option is exercised, in which case, the balance 
recognised in equity will be transferred to [share 
premium/other equity [describe]]. Where the 
conversion option remains unexercised at the 
maturity date of the convertible instrument, the 
balance recognised in equity will be transferred 
to [retained profits/other equity [describe]]. No 
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon 
conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

  Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the 
convertible notes are allocated to the liability 
and equity components in proportion to the 
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction 
costs relating to the equity component are 
recognised directly in equity. Transaction 
costs relating to the liability component are 
included in the carrying amount of the liability 
component and are amortised over the lives 
of the convertible notes using the effective 
interest method.

  derecognition
  Financial assets
  The Company derecognises a financial asset 

when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers 
the rights to receive the contractual cash flows 
in a transaction in which substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 
asset are transferred or in which the Company 
neither transfers nor retains substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of ownership and does 
not retain control of the financial asset.

  If the Company enters into transactions whereby 
it transfers assets recognised on its balance 
sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, 
the transferred assets are not derecognised.

  Financial liabilities
  The Company derecognises a financial liability 

when its contractual obligations are discharged 
or cancelled, or expire.

  The Company also derecognises a financial 
liability when its terms are modified and the cash 

flows under the modified terms are substantially 
different. In this case, a new financial liability 
based on the modified terms is recognised at 
fair value. The difference between the carrying 
amount of the financial liability extinguished and 
the new financial liability with modified terms is 
recognised in profit or loss.

  Offsetting
  Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset 

and the net amount presented in the balance 
sheet when, and only when, the Company 
currently has a legally enforceable right to set 
off the amounts and it intends either to settle 
them on a net basis or to realise the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously.

   write-off
  The gross carrying amount of a financial asset 

is written off (either partially or in full) to the 
extent that there is no realistic prospect of 
recovery. This is generally the case when the 
Company determines that the debtor does not 
have assets or sources of income that could 
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the 
amounts subject to the write- off. However, 
financial assets that are written off could still 
be subject to enforcement activities under the 
Company’s recovery procedures, taking into 
account legal advice where appropriate. Any 
recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

   Impairment of financial instruments
  The Company recognises a loss allowance for 

expected credit losses (ECL) on:

  - F i n anc i a l  a s s e t s  measu r ed  a t 
amortised cost;

  - Financial assets measured at FVOCI - 
debt investments;

  The Company always recognises lifetime ECL for 
trade receivables. The expected credit losses 
on these financial assets are estimated using 
a provision matrix based on the Company’s 
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for 
factors that are specific to the debtors, general 
economic conditions and an assessment of both 
the current as well as the forecast direction of 
conditions at the reporting date, including time 
value of money where appropriate.

  For all other financial instruments, the Company 
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been 
a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
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recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk 
on the financial instrument has not increased 
signif icantly since initial recognition, the 
Company measures the loss allowance for that 
financial instrument at an amount equal to 12 
month ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime 
ECL should be recognised is based on significant 
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default 
occurring since initial recognition.

  Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit 
losses that will result from all possible default 
events over the expected life of a financial 
instrument. 12 month ECL represents the 
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result 
from default events on a financial instrument 
that are possible within 12 months after the 
reporting date.

  When determining whether credit risk of a 
financial asset has increased significantly since 
initial recognition and when estimating expected 
credit losses, the Company considers reasonable 
and supportable information that is relevant 
and available without undue cost or effort. 
This includes both quantitative and qualitative 
information and analysis, including on historical 
experience and forward-looking information.

  Loss allowances for financial assets measured 
at amortised cost are deducted from the gross 
carrying amount of the assets.For debt securities 
at FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in OCI 
and carrying amount of the financial asset is not 
reduced in the balance sheet.

 f. revenue recognition :
  Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 

consideration received or receivable. Amount 
disclosed as revenue are exclusive of GST 
and net of revenue on policy cancellations 
and endorsements.

  Rendering of services
  Brokerage Income, Handling Charges & Broker 

Retainer Fees is accounted for net of GST 
amount on rendition of services. Brokerage 
income is recognized on receiving details of 
the policy issued by the insurance company 
or receipt of brokerage whichever is earlier. 
The Company recognises revenue from 
rendering of consultancy services in proportion 
to the stage of completion of the transaction at 
the reporting date. The stage of completion is 
assessed based on surveys of work performed."

  Dividend and interest income
  Dividends are recognised in the statement of 

profit and loss only when the right to receive 
payment is established, it is probable that the 
economic benefits associated with the dividend 
will flow to the Company, and the amount of the 
dividend can be measured reliably.

  Interest income is recognised when it is 
probable that the economic benefits will flow 
to the Company and the amount of income 
can be measured reliably. Interest income 
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to 
the principal outstanding and at the effective 
interest rate applicable, which is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
receipts through the expected life of the financial 
asset to that asset's net carrying amount on 
initial recognition.

 g. employee benefits:
Superannuation Fund, ESIC and Labour 
Welfare Fund

  The Company’s contribution paid/payable 
during the year to Superannuation Fund, ESIC 
and Labour Welfare Fund are recognised in  
statement of profit and loss.

Provident Fund
  Contributions to Provident Fund are charged 

to the statement of profit and loss as incurred. 
The Company is liable for the contribution and 
any shortfall in interest between the amount 
of interest realised by the investments and the 
interest payable to the members at the rate 
declared by the Government of India.

  Gratuity
  The liability or asset recognised in the balance 

sheet in respect of defined benefit pension and 
gratuity plans is the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting 
period less the fair value of plan assets. The 
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually 
by actuary using the projected unit credit  
method. The present value of the defined 
benefit obligation is determined by discounting 
the estimated future cash outf lows  by 
reference to market yields at the end of the 
reporting period on government bonds that  
have terms approximating to the terms of the 
related obligation.

  The net interest cost is calculated by applying the 
discount rate to the net balance of the defined 
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan 
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assets. This cost is included in employee benefit 
expense in the statement of profit  and loss.

  Remeasurement gains and losses arising 
from experience adjustments and changes in 
actuarial assumptions are recognised in the 
period in which they occur, directly  in other 
comprehensive income. They are included in 
retained earnings in the statement of changes 
in equity and in the balance sheet.

  Defined contribution plans
  Obligations for contributions to def ined 

contribution plans are expensed as the related 
service is provided. Prepaid contributions 
are recognised as an asset to the extent 
that a cash refund or a reduction in future 
payments is available.

  Compensated Absences
  The Company has a policy on compensated 

absences which are both accumulating and 
non-accumulating in nature. The expected cost 
of accumulating compensated absences is 
determined by acturial valuation performed by 
an independent actuary at each balance sheet 
date using projected unit credit method on 
the additional amount expected to be paid or 
availed as a result of the unused entitllement 
that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. 
Expense on non accumulating compensated 
absences is recognised in the period in which 
the absences occur.

  Cash settled share based payments
  Cash Settled Share Based Payments, the fair 

value of the amount payable to employees is 
recognized as ‘employee benefit expenses with 
corresponding increase in liabilities, over the 
period of non market vesting conditions getting 
fulfilled. The fair value of the option at the grant 
date is calculated by an independent valuer basis 
Black Scholes model. The Liability is remeasured 
at  each reporting period up to, and including 
the settlement date, with  changes in fair value 
recognized in employee benefit expenses.

 h. taxation :
  Income tax expense comprises current tax and 

deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement 
of profit and loss except to the extent that it 
relates to a business combination or to an 
item recognised directly in equity or in other 
comprehensive income.

  Current tax
  Current tax comprises expected tax payable 

on the taxable income or loss for the year and 
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable 
in respect of previous years. The Company’s 
current tax is calculated using tax rates that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the end of the reporting period.

  Current tax assets and current tax liabilities 
are offset only if there is a legally enforceable 
right to set off the recognised amounts and it 
is entended to realise the asset and settle the 
liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

  Deferred tax
  Deferred tax is recognised on temporary 

differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities in the financial statements 
and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax 
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 
generally recognised for all deductible temporary 
differences to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profits will be available against which 
those deductible temporary differences can be 
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are not recognised if the temporary difference 
arises from the initial recognition (other than in 
a business combination) of assets and liabilities 
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable 
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, 
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the 
temporary difference arises from the initial 
recognition of goodwill.

  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is 
reviewed at the end of each reporting period 
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profits will 
be available to allow all or part of the asset 
to be recovered.

  Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured 
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period in which the liability is settled or the asset 
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the end of the reporting period.

  The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and 
assets reflects the tax consequences that would 
follow from the manner in which the Company 
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to 
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recover or settle the carrying amount of its 
assets and liabilities.

  Current and deferred tax for the year
  Current and deferred tax are recognised in the 

statement of profit and loss, except when they 
relate to items that are recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, 
in which case, the current and deferred tax 
are also recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity respectively. Where 
current tax or deferred tax arises from the 
initial accounting for a business combination, 
the tax effect is included in the accounting for 
the business combination.

  Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)
  Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative 

Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws 
in India, which is likely to give future economic 
benefits in the form of availability of set off against 
future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is 
recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance 
sheet when the asset can be measured reliably, 
and it is probable that the future economic 
benefit associated with asset will be realised. 
Current and deferred tax expense is recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except 
when they relate to items that are recognised 
in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity, in which case, the current and deferred 
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity respectively. Where 
current tax or deferred tax arises from the 
initial accounting for a business combination, 
the tax effect is included in the accounting for 
the business combination."

 i. provisions, contingent Liabilities and 
contingent assets :

  Provisions are recognised when the Company 
has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the 
Company will be required to settle the obligation, 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation.

  The amount recognised as a provision is the 
best estimate of the consideration required to 
settle the present obligation at the end of the 
reporting period, taking into account the risks 
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 
Provisions are determined by discounting the 
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate 
that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks specific 

to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is 
recognised as finance cost.

  A present obligation that arises from past 
events, where it is either not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle 
or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot 
be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability.
Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when 
there is a possible obligation arising from past 
events, the existence of which will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one 
or more uncertain future events not wholly within 
the control of the Company. Claims against the 
Company, where the possibility of any outflow 
of resources in settlement is remote, are not 
disclosed as contingent liabilities

  When some or all of the economic benefits 
required to settle a provision are expected to 
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is 
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that 
reimbursement will be received and the amount 
of the receivable can be measured reliably.

 j. Leasing :
  The company has applied Ind AS 116 using the 

modified retrospective approach.

  as a Lessee

  The company recognises a right-of-use asset 
and a lease liability at the lease commencement 
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured 
at cost, which comprises the initial amount of 
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments 
made at or before the commencement date, 
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an 
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the 
underlying asset or to restore the underlying 
asset or the site on which it is located, less any 
lease incentives received.

  The r ight -of-use asset is subsequent ly 
depreciated using the straight-line method from 
the commencement date to the earlier of the 
end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset 
or the end of the lease term. The estimated 
useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined 
on the same basis as those of property and 
equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset 
is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if 
any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements 
of the lease liability.
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  The lease liability is initially measured at the 
present value of the lease payments that are 
not paid at the commencement date, discounted 
using the interest rate implicit in the lease.

  The lease liability is measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method. It is 
remeasured when there is a change in future 
lease payments arising from a change in an index 
or rate, if there is a change in the company’s 
estimate of the amount expected to be payable 
under a residual value guarantee, or if company 
changes its assessment of whether it will 
exercise a purchase, extension or termination 
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in 
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made 
to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, 
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset has been 
reduced to zero.

  The company presents right-of-use assets 
that do not meet the definition of investment 
property in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and 
lease liabilities in ‘other financial liabilities’ in the 
statement of financial position. (Refer Schedule 
nos. 14 and 21)

 k. segment reporting
  Operating Segments are reported consistently 

with the internal reporting provided to the 
Managing Director. The highest decision 
making executive is reposnsible for allocating 
resources to and assessing the performance 
of the operating segments. The highest decision 
making body is Managing Director.

 l. earnings per share
  Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing 

the net profit or loss for the period attributable 
to equity shareholders by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during 
the period. Earnings considered in ascertaining 
the Company’s earnings per share is the net 
profit for the period after deducting preference 
dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the 
period. The weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period and for all 
periods presented is adjusted for events, such 
as bonus shares, sub-division of shares etc. 
that have changed the number of equity shares 
outstanding, without corresponding change in 

resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted 
earnings per share, the net profit or loss for 
the period attributable to equity shareholders 
and the weighted average numbers of shares 
outstanding during the period is adjusted for the 
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

 m. coronavirus (cOvId-19) pandemic impact
  The ongoing COVID -19 pandemic has 

increased the estimation uncertainty in the 
preparation of these Financial Statements. 
The estimation uncertainty is associated with: 
- the extent and duration of the disruption 
to business arising from the actions by 
governments, businesses and consumers 
to conta in the spread o f the v i rus; 
- the extent and duration of the expected 
economic downturn (and forecasts for key 
economic factors including, agriculture, 
manufactur ing, GDP and employment). 
This includes the disruption to suspended 
manufacturing operations, liquidity concerns, 
increasing unemployment, reductions in 
production because of decreased demand, 
and other restructuring act iv i t ies; and 
- the effectiveness of government and Reserve 
Bank of India measures that have and will be put 
in place to support businesses and consumers 
through this disruption and economic downturn. 
The Company has developed various accounting 
estimates in these Financial Statements based 
on forecasts of economic conditions which 
reflect expectations and assumptions as at 
31 March 2020 about future events that the 
management believe are reasonable in the 
circumstances. There is a considerable degree 
of judgement involved in preparing forecasts. 
The underlying assumptions are also subject 
to uncertainties which are often outside the 
control of the Company. Accordingly, actual 
economic conditions can be different from 
those forecasted and the effect of those 
differences may impact accounting estimates 
included in these f inancial statements. 
The significant accounting estimates impacted 
by these forecasts and associated uncertainties 
are predominantly related to expected business 
slowdown. The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic 
on these accounting estimates is mentioned 
relevantly in the respective disclosures to these 
Financial Statements.
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nOte nO. 1 - prOperty, pLant and equIpMent
Rs. In lakhs

description of assets

plant and 
equipment 
(including 

computers)

Leasehold 
Improvements

Office 
equipment

furniture and 
fixtures

vehicles total

I. gross carrying amount

 Balance as at 1 april 2019  648.32  177.81  248.50  149.66  583.06  1,807.35 

 Additions  45.52  36.61  6.86  0.56  241.04  330.59 

 Disposals  2.42  -    4.24  5.02  91.39  103.07 

 Balance as at 31 March 2020  691.42  214.42  251.12  145.20  732.71  2,034.87 

II. accumulated 
depreciation and impairment

 Balance as at 1 april 2019  457.13  10.05  75.55  41.57  277.79  862.09 

 Depreciation expense for the year 91.81 25.14 43.75 12.19 144.57 318.26

 Eliminated on disposal of assets  2.42  -    3.02  4.98  76.53  86.95 

 Balance as at 31 March 2020  546.52  35.19  116.28  49.58  345.83  1,093.40 

III. net carrying amount (I-II)  144.90  179.23  134.84  95.62  386.88  941.47 

Rs. In lakhs

description of assets

plant and 
equipment 
(including 

computers)

Leasehold 
Improvements

Office 
equipment

furniture and 
fixtures

vehicles total

I. gross carrying amount

 Balance  as at 1 april 2018  541.69  -    84.78  80.20  466.96  1,173.63 

 Additions  113.04  177.81  171.90  78.74  220.57  762.06 

 Disposals  6.41  -    8.18  9.27  104.47  128.33 

 Balance as at 31 March 2019  648.32  177.81  248.50  149.67  583.06  1,807.36 

II. accumulated 
depreciation and impairment

 Balance as at 1 April 2018  348.83  -    50.85  22.06  248.11  669.85 

 Depreciation expense for the year  113.86  10.05  31.09  24.34  114.02  293.36 

 Eliminated on disposal of assets  5.56  -    6.40  4.83  84.34  101.13 

 Balance As at 31 March 2019  457.13  10.05  75.54  41.57  277.79  862.08 

III. net carrying amount (I-II)  191.19  167.76  172.96  108.10  305.27  945.28 
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nOte nO. 2 - Other IntangIBLe assets 
Rs. In lakhs

description of assets
Computer 
Software

Total

I. gross carrying amount
 Balance as at 1 April 2019  242.02  242.02 
 Additions from separate acquisitions  94.22  94.22 
 Disposals  45.08  45.08 
 Balance as at 31 March 2020  291.16  291.16 
II. accumulated depreciation and impairment
 Balance as at 1 April 2019  99.04  99.04 
 Amortisation expense for the year  85.82  85.82 
 Disposals  22.13  22.13 
 Balance as at 31 March 2020  162.73  162.73 
III. net carrying amount (I-II)  128.43  128.43 

Rs. In lakhs

description of assets
Computer 
Software

Total

Intangible assets
I. gross carrying amount
 Balance as at 1 April 2018  154.85  154.85 
 Additions from separate acquisitions  87.17  87.17 
 Balance as at 31 March 2019  242.02  242.02 
II. accumulated depreciation and impairment
 Balance as at 1 April 2018  30.83  30.83 
 Amortisation expense for the year 68.21 68.21
 Balance as at 31 March 2019 99.04 99.04
III. net carrying amount (I-II) 142.98 142.98

nOte nO. 3 - InvestMents
Rs. In lakhs

 as at 31 March 2020  as at 31 March 2019 

particular
 amounts 
 current 

 amounts 
 non current 

 amounts 
 current 

 amounts 
 non current 

Investments carried at amortised cost
Investment in Fixed Deposits with Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services Limited

 -    3,075.00  1,550.00  2,075.00 

TOTAL INVESTMENTS CARRIED AT AMORTISED COST  -    3,075.00  1,550.00  2,075.00 
Investments carried at fair value through 
profit and Loss
quoted Investments
Investments in Mutual Funds  1,664.45  -    112.93  -   
TOTAL INVESTMENTS CARRIED AT FAIR VALUE  1,664.45  -    112.93  -   
TOTAL INVESTMENTS  1,664.45  3,075.00  1,662.93  2,075.00 

Rs. In lakhs

Investments in Mutual funds  as at 31 March 2020  as at 31 March 2019 

particulars  units Amount in Rs.  units Amount in Rs.

Mahindra Liquid Fund-Reg DD  166,352.118  1,664.45  11,289.505  112.93 
Total  166,352.118  1,664.45  11,289.505  112.93 
quoted
Aggregate book value  1,664.96  112.93 
Aggregate market value  1,664.45  112.93 
unquoted
Aggregate book value  -    -   
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nOte nO. 4 - LOans
Rs. In lakhs

particulars
 as at 31 March 2020  as at 31 March 2019 

 current non current current non current

Loans to related parties (Refer Note Below) 

- Unsecured, considered good  18,125.00  16,800.00  29,800.00  -   

TOTAL LOANS  18,125.00  16,800.00  29,800.00  -   

Note: Intercorporate Deposits (ICDs)  placed with related parties.

Rs. In lakhs

particulars
as at  

31 March 2020
as at  

31 March 2019

ICDs with  Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited  2,125.00  300.00 

ICDs with  Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited  32,800.00  29,500.00 

 Total  34,925.00  29,800.00 

The above Intercorporate Deposits have been given for general business purpose of the receipient.

nOte nO. 5 - Other fInancIaL assets
Rs. In lakhs

particulars
 as at 31 March 2020  as at 31 March 2019 

 current non current current non current

financial assets at amortised cost

Interest Accrued but not due*  1,675.00  -    1,478.10  7.20 

Security Deposits  -    97.14  -    97.14 

Bank Deposit with more than 12 months maturity  -    60.00  -    60.00 

Others  0.25  -    -    -   

TOTAL  1,675.25  157.14  1,478.10  164.34 

The Bank Deposit with more than 12 months maturity is under lien to the IRDAI as per the IRDAI (Insurance Brokers) 
Regulations 2018.

* Note: Interest Accured but not due from related parties.

Rs. In lakhs

particulars
as at  

31 March 2020
as at  

31 March 2019

 Interest on ICDs  1,442.56  1,101.58 

 Interest on FDs  224.05  376.72 

 Total  1,666.61  1,478.30 
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nOte nO. 6 - current tax and deferred tax
(a) Income tax recognised in profit or loss

Rs. In lakhs

particulars
year ended  

31 March 2020
year ended  

31 March 2019

current tax:

In respect of current year  2,059.00  3,188.00 

In respect of prior years  -    -   

 2,059.00  3,188.00 

deferred tax:

In respect of current year origination and reversal of temporary differences  (5.03)  (48.03)

 (5.03)  (48.03)

Total income tax expense  2,053.97  3,139.97 

(b) Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Rs. In lakhs

particulars
year ended  

31 March 2020
year ended  

31 March 2019

current tax:

Deferred tax related to items recognised in other comprehensive income during the year:

 Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations  (74.74)  (18.05)

 (74.74)  (18.05)

classification of income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Income taxes related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  (74.74)  (18.05)

Total income tax expense  (74.74)  (18.05)

(c) reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by company's domestic 
tax rate:

Rs. In lakhs

particulars
year ended  

31 March 2020
year ended  

31 March 2019

profit before tax  7,390.16  10,289.36 

Income tax expense calculated at 25.17% (2019: 29.12%)  1,860.10  2,996.26 

effect of expenses that is non-deductible in determining taxable profit  432.17  338.61 

Effect of tax incentives and concessions (other allowances)  (238.30)  (194.90)

Income tax expense recognised In profit or loss  2,053.97  3,139.97 

(d) Movement in deferred tax balances
Rs. In lakhs

particulars

year ended 31 March 2020

Opening Balance
recognised in 

profit and Loss
recognised in OcI closing Balance

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets

Employee Benefits  251.16  (16.74)  74.74  309.16 

Property, Plant and Equipment  65.92  23.95  -    89.87 

Amortization and Interest in respect of lease payments  -    18.61  -    18.61 

Provisions  75.17  (20.80)  -    54.37 

 392.25  5.03  74.74  472.01 

Net Tax Asset (Liabilities)  392.25  5.03  74.74  472.01 
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nOte nO. 6 - current tax and deferred tax
Rs. In lakhs

particulars
year ended 31 March 2019

Opening Balance
recognised in 

profit and Loss
recognised in OcI closing Balance

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets

Employee Benefits  194.19  38.92  18.05  251.16 

Property, Plant and Equipment  40.70  25.22  -    65.92 

Amortization and Interest in respect of lease payments  -    -    -    -   

Provisions  91.29  (16.12)  -    75.17 

 326.18  48.03  18.05  392.25 

Net Tax Asset (Liabilities)  326.18  48.03  18.05  392.25 

The Company has computed the tax expense of the current financial year as per the tax regime announced under section 115BAA of the Income Tax 
Act, 1961. Accordingly, the provision for current tax and deferred tax has been determined at the rate of 25.17%,. As a result, the tax expense for 
year ended 31st March, 2020 is lowered by Rs. 319 lakhs  and deferred tax asset has been reduced by 61.60 lakhs (Net of Deferred Tax Liability).

nOte nO. 7 - Other assets 
Rs. In lakhs

particulars
 as at 31 March 2020  as at 31 March 2019 

current non- current current non- current

 (a) advances other than capital advances 

  (i) Earnest Money Deposit  0.15  -    0.15  -   

  (ii) Balances with government authorities (other than 
income taxes) 

 814.32  -    1,059.84  -   

  (iii) Other assets  584.68  1.23  486.86  0.61 

 (b) capital advance  -    7.74  -    20.23 

 (c) advance payment of tax (net of provisions)  -    856.69  -    247.79 

 Total Other Assets  1,399.15  865.66  1,546.85  268.63 

nOte nO. 8 - trade receIvaBLes
Rs. In lakhs

particulars

as at 
31 March 2020

as as  
31 March 2019

current current

trade receivables

(a)     Secured, considered good  -    -   

(b)     Unsecured, considered good  5,679.77  7,607.11 

(c)     Significant increase in credit risk  -    -   

(d)     Credit Impaired  191.21  109.75 

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss  191.21  109.75 

TOTAL  5,679.77  7,607.11 

Of the above, trade receivables from:                  

 - Related Parties  1,271.61  2,920.32 

 - Others  4,408.16  4,686.79 

Total  5,679.77  7,607.11 
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nOte nO. 9 - cash and Bank BaLances
Rs. In lakhs

particulars
year ended  

31 March 2020
year ended  

31 March 2019

cash and cash equivalents

(a) Balances with banks  1,297.76  560.66 

(b) Cash on hand  12.48  2.70 

Total Cash and cash equivalent  1,310.24  563.36 

nOte nO. 10 - equIty share capItaL
Rs. In lakhs

particulars
 as at 31 March 2020  as at 31 March 2019 

no. of shares Rs. In lakhs no. of shares Rs. In lakhs

authorised: 

 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each with voting rights  1,50,00,000  1,500.00  1,50,00,000  1,500.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid:

 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each with voting rights  1,03,09,280  1,030.93  1,03,09,280  1,030.93 

Total  1,03,09,280  1,030.93  1,03,09,280  1,030.93 

(i) reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period.
particulars Opening Balance fresh Issue Bonus esOp closing Balance

(a) equity shares with voting rights*

 Year ended 31 March 2020

 No. of Shares  1,03,09,280  -  -  -  1,03,09,280 

 Amount ( In Lakhs)  1,030.93  -  -  -  1,030.93 

 Year ended 31 March 2019

 No. of Shares  25,77,320  -  77,31,960  -  1,03,09,280 

 Amount ( In Lakhs)  257.73  -  773.20  -  1,030.93 

*Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity share 
is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed 
by Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting. Further, the 
Board of Directors may also announce an interim dividend which would need to be confirmed by the shareholders 
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the shareholders are eligible to receive the 
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholdings.

(ii) details of shares held by the holding company, the ultimate holding company, their subsidiaries and 
associates:

no. of shares

particulars
 equity shares 

with voting rights

 equity shares 
with differential 

voting rights
Others

as at 31 March 2020

Mahindra and Mahindra Financial Services Limited, the Holding Company  82,47,424  -    -   

as at 31 March 2019

Mahindra and Mahindra Financial Services Limited, the Holding Company  82,47,424  -    -   
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nOte nO. 10 - equIty share capItaL
(iii) details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Rs. In lakhs

particulars

 as at 31 March 2020  as at 31 March 2019 

number of 
shares held

% holding in that 
class of shares 

number of 
shares held

% holding in that 
class of shares 

Equity shares with voting rights

Mahindra and Mahindra Financial Services Limited  82,47,424 80%  82,47,424 80%

Inclusion Resource Pte Limited  20,61,856 20%  20,61,856 20%

nOte nO. 11 - Other equIty
description of the nature and purpose of Other equity
securities premium: The securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be 
utilized in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

general reserve: The general reserve comprises of transfer of profits from retained earnings for appropriation 
purposes. The reserve can be distributed / utilized in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

Rs. In lakhs

reserves and surplus Items of other comprehensive income

securities 
premium 

general reserve
retained 
earnings

remeasurement 
loss (net) on 

defined benefit 
plans

total

as at 1 april 2018  1,589.50  1,658.43  28,193.37  (147.89)  31,293.41 

Profit / (Loss) for the Period  -    -    7,149.39  -    7,149.39 

Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)  -    (43.95)  (43.95)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year  -    -    7,149.39  (43.95)  7,105.44 

Dividend paid on Equity Shares  -    -    (463.92)  (463.92)

Dividend Distribution Tax  -    -    (95.36)  (95.36)

Transfers to Reserves  -    -    -   

Transfers from retained earnings  (Issue 
of bonus shares and related expenses)

 -    -    (784.12)  (784.12)

as at 1 april 2019  1,589.50  1,658.43  33,999.36  (191.84)  37,055.45 

Profit / (Loss) for the Period  5,336.19  5,336.19 

Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)  -    (222.21)  (222.21)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year  -    -    5,336.19  (222.21)  5,113.98 

Dividend paid on Equity Shares  (773.20)  (773.20)

Dividend Distribution Tax  (158.93)  (158.93)

Transfers to Reserves  -    -   

Transfers from retained earnings (Issue 
of bonus shares and related expenses)

 -    -   

as at 31 March 2020  1,589.50  1,658.43  38,403.42  (414.05)  41,237.30 
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nOte nO. 11 - Other equIty
details of dividend paid/proposed

Rs. In lakhs

particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

cash dividends on equity shares declared and paid

Final dividend for the Year ended on 31 March 2019: Rs. 7.50 per share ( 31 March 
2018: Rs.18.00 per share)

 773.20  463.92 

Dividend Distribution Tax on final dividend  158.93  95.36 

 932.13  559.28 

proposed dividends on equity shares

Final dividend for the Year ended on 31 March 2020: Rs.NIL per share  
(31 March 2019: Rs.7.50 per share)

 -    773.20 

Dividend Distribution Tax on proposed dividend  -    158.93 

 -    932.13 

Proposed dividends on equity shares are subject to approval in annual general meeting and are not recognised as 
a liability as at 31 March.

nOte nO. 12 - prOvIsIOns
Rs. In lakhs

particulars
 as at 31 March 2020  as at 31 March 2019 

current non- current current non- current

(a) provision for employee benefits

 - Grautuiy  74.37  548.60  34.95  287.82 

 - Leave Encashment  93.21  628.94  71.24  466.43 

 - Others  2,751.68  -    1,809.13  -   

(b) Other provisions

 - Provision for tax (net of advance tax paid)  16.13  -    42.16  -   

Total Provisions  2,935.39  1,177.54  1,957.48  754.25 

nOte nO. 13 - trade payaBLes
Rs. In lakhs

particulars
as at  

31 March 2020
as at 

31 March 2019

(I) Trade Payables

 (i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises#  0.51  -   

 (ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises**

 4,959.31  4,570.91 

(II) Other Payables

 (i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  -    -   

 (ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

 -    -   

 Total  4,959.82  4,570.91 

# On the basis of confirmations received from parties

**Including amount payable to related parties of Rs.34.15 lakhs (31 March 2019: Rs. 69.44 lakhs)
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nOte nO. 14 - Other fInancIaL LIaBILItIes 
Rs. In lakhs

particulars
 as at 31 March 2020  as at 31 March 2019 

current non- current current non- current

Other financial Liabilities Measured at amortised cost

(i) Other liabilities

 (1) Others  46.50  -    26.04  -   

 (2) Lease liability-building  469.86  1,677.25  -    -   

Total other financial liabilities  516.36  1,677.25  26.04  -   

nOte nO. 15 - Other LIaBILItIes
Rs. In lakhs

particulars
 as at 31 March 2020  as at 31 March 2019 

current non- current current non- current

statutory dues

-  taxes payable (other than income taxes)  639.08  -    1,053.04  -   

-  Employee Recoveries and Employer Contributions  248.76  -    278.14  -   

TOTAL OTHER LIABILITIES  887.84  -    1,331.18  -   

nOte nO. 16 - revenue frOM OperatIOns
Rs. In lakhs

particulars
year ended  

31 March 2020
year ended  

31 March 2019

revenue from rendering of services

Brokerage  17,718.13  16,686.53 

Broker retainer fees  6,865.89  7,144.27 

Handling charges  5,799.83  5,907.78 

Consultancy fees  98.90  59.85 

Total Revenue from Operations  30,482.75  29,798.43 

nOte nO. 17 - Other IncOMe
Rs. In lakhs

particulars
year ended  

31 March 2020
year ended  

31 March 2019

(a) Interest Income

- On Financial Assets at Amortised Cost  3,144.85  2,523.78 

(b) Dividend Income

- On Financial Assets Fair Value through Profit or Loss  46.96  12.93 

(c) Miscellaneous Income  1.65  1.20 

(d) Gain on foreign exchange  12.67  -   

Total Other Income  3,206.13  2,537.91 
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nOte nO. 18 - eMpLOyee BenefIts expense
Rs. In lakhs

particulars
year ended  

31 March 2020
year ended  

31 March 2019

(a) Salaries and wages, including bonus*  8,615.32  8,042.89 
(b) Contribution to provident and other funds  463.14  383.72 
(c) Gratuity expenses  118.73  106.99 
(d) Share based payment transactions expenses
 Cash-settled share-based payments  2,613.01  368.26 
(e) Staff welfare expenses  220.94  200.46 
Total Employee Benefit Expense  12,031.14  9,102.32 

*Including payments to Key Mangerial Person of Rs. 459.16 lakhs (31 March 2019: Rs. 262.37 lakhs)

cash-settled share-based payments
In respect of the Cash-settled share-based payments, Employee Stock Options (ESOS) of the ultimate 
holding company Mahindra & Mahindra Limited and the holding company Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services Limited (MMFSL) are issued to eligible employees of the Company. The Company 
makes the necessary payment to the respective Ultimate holding company and holding company. 
Further refer Note No. 28 for Employees Phantom Stock Option Plan 2019

nOte nO. 19 - Other expenses
Rs. In lakhs

particulars
year ended  

31 March 2020
year ended  

31 March 2019

(a) Distribution fees*  8,195.60  8,632.22 
(b) Power & fuel  89.01  74.21 
(c) Rent including lease rentals  -    531.40 
(d) Rates and taxes  37.90  19.34 
(e) Insurance  399.67  238.03 
(f) Postage, Telephone and Communication  174.72  173.68 
(g) Software Charges  2.08  1.29 
(h) Repairs - Others  106.76  124.96 
(i) Administration Support Charges  175.62  162.87 
(j) Manpower Contracting Charges  644.53  361.39 
(k) Advertisement  4.02  4.34 
(l) Sales promotion expenses  164.00  109.09 
(m) Travelling and Conveyance Expenses  840.18  679.49 

(n)
Expenditure on corporate social responsibilty (CSR) under section 135 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. (Refer note no.33.3)

 185.20  160.33 

(o) Doubtful trade and other receivables written off  81.46  81.25 
(p) Bad Debts written off  256.78  -   
(q) Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses  13.37  13.61 

(i) As Auditors  5.00  5.00 
(ii) For Other services  8.00  8.03 
(iii) For reimbursement of expenses  0.37  0.58 

(r) Directors' Commission  142.70  14.00 
(s) Directors' Sitting Fees  7.10  6.40 
(t) Legal and other professional costs  518.02  351.09 
(u) Loss on sale of property, plant and equipments  21.61  6.21 
(v) Loss due to change in fair value of investments  0.51  -   
(w) Loss on foreign exchange  -    17.43 
(x) Miscellaneous expenses  1,129.81  820.46 
Total Other Expenses  13,190.65  12,583.09 

*Distribution fees are the payments made to Motor Insurance Service Providers (Automotive Dealers) as per the 
Guidelines  issued under section 34 of the Insurance Act, 1938 and section 14 of the IRDA Act, 1999 on Motor 
Insurance Service Provider with effect from 1st November 2017
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nOte nO. 20 - earnIngs per share

particulars
year ended  

31 March 2020
year ended  

31 March 2019

 per share per share

Basic Earnings per share  51.76  69.35 
Diluted Earnings per share  51.76  69.35 

Basic earnings per share
The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 
are as follows:

Rs. In lakhs

particulars
year ended  

31 March 2020
year ended  

31 March 2019

Profit / (loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company  5,336.19  7,149.39 
Less: Preference dividend and tax thereon
Profit / (loss) for the year used in the calculation of basic earnings per share  5,336.19  7,149.39 
Weighted average number of equity shares (nos)  1,03,09,280  1,03,09,280 
Earnings per share - Basic  51.76  69.35 

diluted earnings per share
The diluted earnings per share has been computed by dividing the Net profit after tax available for Equity shareholders 
by the weighted average number of equity shares, after giving dilutive effect of the outstanding Warrants, Stock 
options and Convertible bonds for the respective periods, if any.

Rs. In lakhs

particulars
year ended  

31 March 2020
year ended  

31 March 2019

Profit / (loss) for the year used in the calculation of basic earnings per share  5,336.19  7,149.39 
Add: Adjustments, if any  -    -   
Profit / (loss) for the year used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share  5,336.19  7,149.39 
Profits used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share  5,336.19  7,149.39 

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted earnings per share reconciles to the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share as follows:  

particulars
year ended  

31 March 2020
year ended  

31 March 2019

weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of Basic eps  1,03,09,280  1,03,09,280 
Add:  Effect of Warrants, if any  -    -   
ESOPs, if any  -    -   
Convertible bonds, if any  -    -   
Others if any  -    -   
weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of diluted eps  1,03,09,280  1,03,09,280 
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nOte nO. 21 - rIght tO use assets-BuILdIng 
Rs. In lakhs

description of assets Building total

I. gross carrying amount
 Balance as at 1 April 2019  -    -   
 Reclassifciation on account of adoption of Ind AS 116  2,562.89  2,562.89 
 Additions  -    -   
 Balance as at 31 March 2020  2,562.89  2,562.89 
II.  accumulated depreciation and impairment
 Balance as at 1 April 2019  -    -   
 Amortisation expense for the year  489.71  489.71 
 Balance as at 31 March 2020  489.71  489.71 
III. net carrying amount (I-II)  2,073.18  2,073.18 

Rs. In lakhs

description of assets Building total

I. gross carrying amount
 Balance as at 1 April 2018  -    -   
 Reclassifciation on account of adoption of Ind AS 116  -    -   
 Additions  -    -   
 Balance as at 31 March 2019  -    -   
II.  accumulated depreciation and impairment
 Balance as at 1 April 2018  -    -   
 Amortisation expense for the year  -    -   
 Balance as at 31 March 2019  -    -   
III. net carrying amount (I-II)  -    -   

nOte nO. 22 - Issue Of BOnus shares
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the bonus issue in the proporiton of 3:1 i. e. three bonus shares of Rs. 10 
each for every one fully paid up equity share held had been approved by the shareholders of the company on July 18, 
2018. For this purpose, July 18, 2018 was considered as the record date. Consequently on August 13, 2018, the 
company allotted 77,31,960 shares and Rs. 773.20 lakhs have been transferred from retained earnings to share 
capital in the year 2018-19.

nOte nO. 23 -  fInancIaL InstruMents
capital management
The company’s capital management objectives are:

  - to ensure the company’s ability to continue as a going concern

  -  to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately with 
the level of risk.

The company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents as 
presented on the face of the statement of financial position. The Company is subject to minimum capital requirements 
as stipulated by the IRDAI (Insurance Brokers) Regulations, 2018.

The company sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall financing structure, i.e. equity and financial liabilities. 
The company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions 
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

Rs. In lakhs

particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Equity 42,268.23 38,086.38
Less: Cash and cash equivalents -1,310.24 -563.36

40,957.99 37,523.02
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Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities

Rs. In Lakhs

as at 31 March 2020  amortised costs  fvtpL  fvOcI  total 

non-current assets

Investments  3,075.00  -    -    3,075.00 

Loans  16,800.00  -    -    16,800.00 

Other Financial Assets  157.14  -    -    157.14 

current assets

Investments  -    1,664.45  -    1,664.45 

Trade Receivables  5,679.77  -    -    5,679.77 

Other Bank Balances  1,310.24  -    -    1,310.24 

Loans  18,125.00  -    -    18,125.00 

Other Financial Assets  1,675.25  -    -    1,675.25 

current Liabilities

Trade Payables  4,959.82  -    -    4,959.82 

Other Financial Liabilities  46.50  -    -    46.50 

Rs. In Lakhs

as at 31 March 2019  amortised costs  fvtpL  fvOcI  total 

non-current assets

Investments  2,075.00  -    -    2,075.00 

Loans  -    -   

Other Financial Assets  164.34  -    -    164.34 

current assets

Investments  1,550.00  112.93  -    1,662.93 

Trade Receivables  7,607.11  -    -    7,607.11 

Other Bank Balances  563.36  -    -    563.36 

Loans  29,800.00  -    -    29,800.00 

Other Financial Assets  1,478.10  -    -    1,478.10 

current Liabilities

Trade Payables  4,570.91  -    -    4,570.91 

Other Financial Liabilities  26.04  -    -    26.04 

financial risk Management framework
The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. In order to 
manage the aforementioned risks, the Company operates a risk management policy and a program that performs 
close monitoring of and responding to each risk factors.

credIt rIsk
(i) credit risk management
 Credit risk arises when a counterparty defaults on its contractual obligations to pay resulting in financial loss 

to the Company.

nOte nO. 23 -  fInancIaL InstruMents
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 Trade receivables consist of institutional customers, largely insurance companies. The Company deals only with 
those insurance companies who have obtained an acceptable level of credit rating. The Company does not have 
significant credit risk exposure to any single external counterparty.  Out of total outstanding 22% of the debtors 
are pertaining to group companies.

 The credit risk on liquid funds invested in Fixed Deposits with companies and Intercorporate Deposits is limited 
because the counterparties are group companies.

 The Company applies the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses prescribed by Ind AS 109, 
which permits the use of the expected loss provision for all trade receivables. The company has computed 
expected credit losses based on a provision matrix which uses historical credit loss experience of the Company and 
individual receivable specific provision where applicable. Forward-looking information (including macroeconomic 
information) has been incorporated into the determination of expected credit losses.

 There is no change in estimation techniques or significant assumptions during the reporting period.

 The loss allowance provision is determined as follows:

Rs. In lakhs

As at March 31, 2020 not due
Less than 6 

months past due
More than 6 

months past due
total

Gross carrying amount 5,482.16 388.82 5,870.98

Loss allowance provision 17.19 174.02 191.21

5,464.97 214.80 5,679.77

Rs. In lakhs

as at March 31, 2019 not due
Less than 6 

months past due
More than 6 

months past due
total

Gross carrying amount 7,049.17 667.69 7,716.86

Loss allowance provision 27.97 81.78 109.75

7,021.20 585.91 7,607.11

 reconciliation of loss allowance provision for trade receivables
Rs. In lakhs

particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Balance as at beginning of the year  109.75  28.50 
Impairment losses recognised in the year based on lifetime expected credit losses
- On receivables originated in the year  81.46  81.25 
Impairment losses recognised in the year based on 12 month expected credit losses
- On receivables originated in the year
Balance at end of the year  191.21  109.75 

 The loss allowance provision has changed during the period due to delays in recovery of brokerage on insurance 
contracts brokered.

 LIquIdIty rIsk
 (i) Liquidity risk management

  Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established 
an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short-, medium- 
and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by 
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring 
forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

nOte nO. 23 -  fInancIaL InstruMents
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 (ii) Maturities of financial liabilities

  The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial 
liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The amount disclosed in the tables have been drawn up based on 
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be 
required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.

Rs. In Lakhs

particulars Less than 1 year 1-3 years 3 years to 5 years 5 years and above

non-derivative financial liabilities

31-Mar-20

Non-interest bearing  5,006.32  -    -    -   

Total  5,006.32  -    -    -   

31-Mar-19

Non-interest bearing  4,596.95  -    -    -   

Total  4,596.95  -    -    -   

 (iii) Financing arrangements

  The Company does not feel the need to have any borrowing facilities at this stage

 (iv) Maturities of financial assets

  The following table details the Company’s expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The 
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including 
interest that will be earned on those assets. The inclusion of information on non-derivative financial assets 
is necessary in order to understand the Company’s liquidity risk management as the liquidity is managed on 
a net asset and liability basis.

Rs. In Lakhs

particulars Less than 1 year 1-3 years 3 years to 5 years 5 years and above

non-derivative financial assets

31-Mar-20

Non-interest bearing  1,675.00  97.14  -    -   

Fixed interest rate instruments  0.25  60.00  -    -   

Total  1,675.25  157.14  -    -   

31-Mar-19

Non-interest bearing  1,478.10  104.34  -    -   

Fixed interest rate instruments  -    60.00  -    -   

Total  1,478.10  164.34  -    -   

 Market rIsk
 Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other 
price risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within 
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. The Company invests in fixed rate instruments taking into 
account the current liquidity requirements. All such transactions are carried out within the guidelines set by the 
Board of Directors.

 There has been no significant changes to the company's exposure to market risk or the methods in which they 
are managed or measured.

nOte nO. 23 -  fInancIaL InstruMents
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 currency risk
 The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange 

rate fluctuations arise. The Company's / Company's exposure to currency risk relates primarily to the Company's 
operating activities in reinsurance broking when transactions are denominated in a different currency from the 
Company's functional currency.

 The Company mitigates its foreign currency risk by entering into reinsurance contracts wherein the risk is to 
the account of the cedant insurers or the reinsurers.

 The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities 
at the end of the reporting period are as follows.

particulars currency 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Trade Receivables USD  -    -   

EUR  -    -   

GBP  -    -   

Trade Payables USD  -    -   

EUR  -    -   

GBP  -    -   

 foreign currency sensitivity
 In management’s opinion, any sensitivity analysis is not representative of the inherent foreign exchange risk 

because the  exposure is to the account of the cedant insurer or reinsurer.

 Interest rate risk
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 

of changes in market interest rates.

 The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of long-term as well as short-term 
fixed deposits with companies as well as intercorporate deposits.

 Interest rate sensitivity
 The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on exposure to interest rate for non-derivative 

instruments at the end of reporting period.

 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion 
of loans given and investments in fixed deposits effected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s 
profit before tax is affected through the impact on fixed rate investments and interest bearing loans as follows:

Rs. In lakhs

particulars currency 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

31-Mar-20 INR +50  190.00 

INR -50  (190.00)

31-Mar-19 INR +50  159.38 

INR -50  (159.38)

 The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently 
observable market environment, showing a significantly higher volatility than in prior years.

nOte nO. 23 -  fInancIaL InstruMents
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nOte nO. 24 - faIr vaLue MeasureMent
fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value

Rs. In lakhs

particulars

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

carrying
amount

fair value
carrying
amount

fair value

financial assets

financial assets carried at amortised cost  

– loans to related parties  34,925.00  34,925.00  29,800.00  29,800.00 

–  trade and other receivables  5,679.77  5,679.77  7,607.11  7,607.11 

–  other financial assets  1,832.39  1,832.39  1,642.44  1,642.44 

 -  fixed Deposits with Companies  3,075.00  3,075.00  3,625.00  3,625.00 

Total  45,512.16  45,512.16  42,674.55  42,674.55 

financial liabilities

financial liabilities held at amortised cost

–  trade and other payables  4,959.82  4,959.82  4,570.91  4,570.91 

–  other financial laibilities  2,193.61  2,193.61  26.04  26.04 

Total  7,153.43  7,153.43  4,596.95  4,596.95 

fair value hierarchy as at 31 st March 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 total

financial assets

financial assets carried at amortised cost

– loans to related parties  34,925.00  34,925.00 

–  trade and other receivables  5,679.77  5,679.77 

–  other financial assets  1,832.39  1,832.39 

– fixed Deposits with companies  3,075.00  3,075.00 

Total  45,512.16  -    45,512.16 

financial liabilities

financial Instruments not carried at fair value

– trade and other payables  4,959.82  -    4,959.82 

– other financial laibilities  2,193.61  2,193.61 

Total  7,153.43  -    7,153.43 

fair value hierarchy as at 31 st March 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 total

Financial assets carried at Amortised Cost

–  loans to related parties  29,800.00  -    29,800.00 

–  trade and other receivables  7,607.11  -    7,607.11 

–  other financial assets  1,642.44  -    1,642.44 

–  fixed Deposits with companies  3,625.00  -    3,625.00 

Total  42,674.55  -    42,674.55 

Financial liabilities

Financial Instruments not carried at Fair Value

– trade and other payables  4,570.91  -    4,570.91 

–  other financial laibilities  26.04  -    26.04 

Total  4,596.95  -    4,596.95 

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the level 2 categories above have been 
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with 
the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties. In the opinion of 
the management, the difference between the carrying value of the above stated financial assets and liabilities is not 
materially different from their fair value . Accordingly, the fair value and carrying amount are the same.
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nOte nO. 25 - eMpLOyee BenefIts
(a) defined contribution plan
 The Company’s contribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund aggregating Rs. 426.93 lakhs (31 March 

2019 : Rs.333.42 lakhs ) has been recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss under the head Employee 
Benefits Expense.

(b) defined Benefit plans:
 gratuity
 The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employees. The benefit payable is the greater of the 

amount calculated as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 or the Company scheme applicable to the employee. 
The benefit vests upon completion of five years of continuous service and once vested it is payable to employees on 
retirement or on termination of employment. In case of death while in service, the gratuity is payable irrespective 
of vesting. The Company makes annual contribution to the group gratuity scheme administered by the Life 
Insurance Corporation of India through its Gratuity Trust Fund.

 Through its defined benefit plans the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are 
detailed below:

 Asset volatility
 The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with references to government bond yields; if 

plan assets under perform compared to the government bonds discount rate, this will create or increase 
a deficit. The defined benefit plans hold a significant proportion of equity type assets, which are expected 
to outperform government bonds in the long-term while providing volatility and risk in the short-term. 
As the plans mature, the Company intends to reduce the level of investment risk by investing more in assets that 
better match the liabilities.

 However, the Company believes that due to the long-term nature of the plan liabilities and the strength of the 
supporting group, a level of continuing equity type investments is an appropriate element of the Company’s long 
term strategy to manage the plans efficiently."

 Changes in bond yields
 A decrease in government bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this is expected to be partially offset 

by an increase in the value of the plans’ bond holdings and interest rate hedging instruments.

 Inflation risk
 Some of the Company’s pension obligations are linked to inflation, and higher inflation will lead to higher liabilities 

(although, in most cases, caps on the level of inflationary increases are in place to protect the plan against extreme 
inflation). The plans hold a significant proportion of assets in index linked gilts, together with other inflation hedging 
instruments and also assets which are more loosely correlated with inflation. However an increase in inflation 
will also increase the deficit to some degree.

 Life expectancy
 The majority of the plan’s obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increases in life 

expectancy will result in an increase in the plan’s liabilities. This is particularly significant in the Company's defined 
benefit plans, where inflationary increases result in higher sensitivity to changes in life expectancy.

 Leave encashment
 The Company has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in 

nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by acturial valuation performed 
by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using projected unit credit method on the additional 
amount expected to be paid or availed as a result of the unused entitllement that has accumulated at the 
balance sheet date. Expense on non accumulating compensated absences is recognised in the period in which 
the absences occur.
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 The significant actuarial assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Valuation as at

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Discount rate(s) 6.41% 7.67% 7.46%

Expected rate(s) of salary increase 7% 7% 7%

Attrition Rate attrition rate 
of 25% up to 

the age of 30, 
12% up to age 
of 44 and 9% 

thereafter

Attrition rate 
of 20% up to 

the age of 35, 
9% up to age 
of 45 and 3% 

thereafter

Attrition rate 
of 23% up to 

the age of 35, 
11% up to age 
of 45 and 10% 

thereafter

 Defined benefit plans – as per actuarial valuation on 31st March, 2020

Rs. In Lkahs

particulars

funded plan unfunded plans

gratuity exigency leave / earned leave

2020 2019 2020 2019

Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in 
respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:

Service Cost

Current Service Cost  97.96  90.58  148.90  105.51 

Past service cost and (gains)/losses from 
settlements

 -    -   

Net interest expense  24.76  16.41  41.24  33.18 

Acquisition adjustment due to transfer out  (3.99)  -   

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in 
profit or loss

 118.73  106.99  190.14  138.70 

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability

Return on plan assets (excluding amunt included in 
net interest expense)

 -    -   

Actuarial gains and loss arising from changes in 
financial assumptions

 -    -   

Actuarial gains and loss arising from experience 
adjustments

 296.95  62.00  -    -   

Others  -    -   

Componenets of defined benefit costs recognised in 
other comprehensive income

 296.95  62.00  -    -   

Total  296.95  62.00  -    -   

I.  net asset/(Liability) recognised in the Balance 
sheet as at 31st March

 1.  Present value of defined benefit obligation as 
at 31st March 

 1,089.09  715.12  722.14  537.67 

 2.  Fair value of plan assets as at 31st March  466.12  392.35  -    -   

 3.  Surplus/(Deficit)  622.97  322.77  722.14  537.67 

 4.  Current portion of the above  74.37  34.95  93.20  71.24 

 5.  Non current portion of the above  548.60  287.82  628.94  466.43 

nOte nO. 25 - eMpLOyee BenefItsnOte nO. 25 - eMpLOyee BenefIts
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Rs. In Lkahs

particulars

funded plan unfunded plans

gratuity exigency leave / earned leave

2020 2019 2020 2019

II.  change in the obligation during the year 
ended 31st March

 1. Present value of defined benefit obligation at 
the beginning of the year 

 715.12  563.39  537.67  444.83 

 2. Add/(Less) on account of Scheme of 
Arrangement/Business

 3.45  -    -    -   

  Transfer  (3.99)  -    -    -   

 3. Expenses Recognised in Profit and Loss 
Account

   - Current Service Cost  97.96  90.58  148.90  105.51 

   -  Past Service Cost  -    -    -    -   

   -  Interest Expense (Income)  54.85  42.03  41.24  33.18 

 4. Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income  -    -    -    -   

  Remeasurement gains / (losses)

   -  Actuarial Gain (Loss) arising from:  -    -    -    -   

     i. Demographic Assumptions  (25.67)  (5.93)  -    -   

     ii.  Financial Assumptions  131.86  4.91  (5.67)  (45.85)

   iii.  Experience Adjustments  160.66  37.40  -    -   

 5. Benefit payments  (45.15)  (17.26)  -    -   

 6. Others  -    -    -    -   

 7.  Present value of defined benefit obligation at 
the end of the year 

 1,089.09  715.12  722.14  537.67 

III.  change in fair value of assets during the year 
ended 31st March

 1. Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of 
the year 

 392.35  343.42  -    -   

 2.  Add/(Less) on account of Scheme of 
Arrangement/Business Transfer 

 3.45  -    -    -   

 3.  Expenses Recognised in Profit and Loss 
Account

 -    -    -    -   

   -  Expected return on plan assets  30.09  25.62  -    -   

 4. Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income  -    -    -    -   

  Remeasurement gains / (losses)  -    -    -    -   

   -   Actual Return on plan assets in excess of 
the expected return

 (30.09)  (25.62)  -    -   

   -  Others  -    -    -    -   

 5.  Contributions by employer (including benefit 
payments recoverable) 

 115.47  66.20  -    -   

 6.  Recoverable/Recovered from LIC  -    (0.01)  -    -   

 7.  Benefit payments  (45.15)  (17.26)  -    -   

 8.  Fair value of plan assets at the end of the 
year 

 466.12  392.35  -    -   

nOte nO. 25 - eMpLOyee BenefIts
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Rs. In Lkahs

particulars

funded plan unfunded plans

gratuity exigency leave / earned leave

2020 2019 2020 2019

Iv. the Major categories of plan assets 

  - Insurer managed funds 100% 100%

v. actuarial assumptions

 1. Discount rate 6.41% 7.67% 6.41% 7.67%

 2. Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.67% 7.46%

 3.  Attrition rate Attrition rate 
of 25% up to 
the age of 30, 
12% up to age 
of 44 and 9% 
thereafter

Attrition rate of 
20% up to the 
age of 35, 9% up 
to age of 45 and 
3% thereafter

Attrition rate 
of 25% up to 
the age of 30, 
12% up to age 
of 44 and 9% 
thereafter

Attrition rate of 
20% up to the 
age of 35, 9% up 
to age of 45 and 
3% thereafter

 The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Rs. In lakhs

principal assumption
changes in 
assumption

Impact on defined benefit  
obligation (gratuity)

Increase in 
assumption

decrease in 
assumption

Discount rate 2020 1  (78.01)  84.71 

2019 1  (106.50)  130.20 

Salary growth rate 2020 1  83.34  (78.28)

2019 1  129.84  (108.00)

Life expectancy 2020 +/- 1 year Negligible Negligible

2019 +/- 1 year Negligible Negligible

 The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Rs. In lakhs

principal assumption
changes in 
assumption

"Impact on defined benefit obligation  
(Leave encashment)"

Increase in 
assumption

decrease in 
assumption

Discount rate 2020 1  (58.12)  66.42 

2019 1  (141.00)  39.90 

Salary growth rate 2020 1  65.38  (58.33)

2019 1  39.56  (142.13)

Life expectancy 2020 +/- 1 year Negligible Negligible

2019 +/- 1 year Negligible Negligible

 The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions 
constant. In practice this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When 
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method 
(present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the 
reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the Balance sheet.

 The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analyses did not change compared to 
previous period.

nOte nO. 25 - eMpLOyee BenefIts
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 The Company expects to contribute Rs. 100 lakhs to the gratuity trusts during the next financial year of 2020.

 Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:
Rs. In lakhs

grauity 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Within 1 year  192.10  141.48 

1 - 2 year  193.14  139.07 

2 - 3 year  240.17  121.56 

3 - 4 year  260.79  160.57 

4 - 5 year  286.71  155.87 

Rs. In lakhs

Leave encashment 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Within 1 year  101.58  97.77 

1 - 2 year  101.98  88.97 

2 - 3 year  109.38  82.92 

3 - 4 year  112.44  88.29 

4 - 5 year  116.04  79.02 

 The Company’s policy is driven by considerations of maximizing returns while ensuring credit quality of the debt 
instruments. The asset allocation for plan assets is determined based on investment criteria prescribed under 
the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961, and is also subject to other exposure limitations. The Company evaluates the 
risks, transaction costs and liquidity for potential investments. To measure plan asset performance, the Company 
compares actual returns for each asset category with published benchmarks.

Rs. In lakhs

vIII. experience adjustments :

year ended

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

gratuity

1. Defined Benefit Obligation  1,089.09  715.12  563.39  292.76  190.82 

2.  Fair value of plan assets  466.12  392.35  343.42  296.21  198.07 

3.  Surplus/(Deficit)  622.97  322.77  219.97  (3.45)  (7.25)

4.  Experience adjustment on plan 
liabilities [(Gain)/Loss] 

 266.85  36.38  178.81  51.64  (51.67)

5.  Experience adjustment on plan 
assets [Gain/(Loss)] 

 (30.09)  (25.62)  (21.80)  (15.85)  2.85 

 The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the average long term rate of return expected on 
investments of the fund during the estimated term of obligation.

 The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

 The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the employee benefits expense 
in profit or loss of the expense for the year.

nOte nO. 25 - eMpLOyee BenefIts
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nOte nO. 26 - segMent InfOrMatIOn
The Company has determined the operating segment based of structure of reports reviewed by the Strategic 
Management Council. For management purposes, the Company is organised into a single business unit and has only 
one reportable segment namely "Insurance Broking services". The geographical segment is based on the location of 
client, whether in India or outside India. The Strategic Management Council of the Company monitors the operating 
results of its business unit for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment

Rs. In lakhs

year ended  
31 March 2020

year ended  
31 March 2019

Revenue from external customers

India  30,482.75 29,798.43

Outside India  -    -   

Total revenue per statement of profit or loss  30,482.75 29,798.43

All Non-current operating assets comprising property, plant and equipment, investment properties and intangible 
assets, if any are located in India.

revenue from major products and services

The following is an analysis of the Company's revenue from continuing operations from its major products and services:

Rs. In lakhs

year ended  
31 March 2020

year ended  
31 March 2019

Insurance Broking and auxillary activities  30,482.75  29,798.43 

Total  30,482.75  29,798.43 

Revenues from transactions with a single external customer amounts to 10% or more of the entity’s revenues. 

nOte nO. 27 -  Leases
company as as a lessee
Following are the changes in the carrying value of Right to use asset for the year ended March 31, 2020

Rs. In lakhs

particulars

category of asset

Building

for the year ended  
31 March 2020

for the year ended  
31 March 2019

Balance at the beginning  -  -   

Reclassifciation on account of adoption of Ind AS 116  2,562.89  -   

Additions  -  -   

Deletions  -  -   

Depreciation  489.71  -   

Balance at the end  2,073.18  -   
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Following is the movement in the lease liabilties during the year ended March 31, 2020

Rs. In lakhs

particulars
for the year ended  

31 March 2020
for the year ended  

31 March 2019

Balance at the beginning  -    -   

Reclassifciation on account of adoption of Ind AS 116  2,562.89 

Additions  -    -   

Deletions  -    -   

Finance Cost accured during the year  183.14  -   

Payment of lease liabilties  598.93  -   

Balance at the end  2,147.10  -   

The table below provides details regarding the contactual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis.

Rs. In lakhs

particulars
for the year ended  

31 March 2020
for the year ended  

31 March 2019

less than one year  82.01  101.43 

one to five years  2.98  85.21 

more than five years  -    -   

nOte nO 28: eMpLOyees share Based payMents  (eMpLOyees phantOM 
stOck OptIOn pLan 2019)
On January 18, 2019, Board of Directors approved the MIBL Employees Phantom Stock Option Plan 2019 (MIBL 
EPSOP 2019) for grant of stock options to the employees, within the meaning of the MIBL-EPSOP 2019 plan. The 
specific employees to whom the options would be granted and their eligibility criteria shall be determined by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board (Committee) from time to time on the basis of one or more 
factors including but not limited to longevity, total experience and role of the Employee. The options granted under 
EPSOP 2019 would vest after 1 (one) year but not later than the maximum vesting Period of 4 (four) years from the 
grant date of such options.

The Committee has prescribe the vesting schedule of the options granted under the plan, unless otherwise decided 
in exceptional cases like retirements:

vesting dates vesting percentage

1st Anniversary from date of Grant 25% of Options granted
2nd Anniversary from date of Grant 25% of Options granted
3rd Anniversary from date of Grant 25% of Options granted
4th Anniversary from date of Grant 25% of Options granted

The Company will process vested options for settlement at each vesting date and determines appreciation in respect 
of all such Options with reference to Fair Market Value prevailing as on date of Vesting calculated as prescribed by 
MIBL EPSOP 2019. The Company recognises the fair value of the liability and expense for these plans over the vesting 
period based on the management’s estimate of the vesting and forfeiture conditions.

Employees Phantom Stock Option Plan outstandng as at March 31, 2020

grant date
exercise 

price
total Options 

granted
Options vested 

and exercisable 
Options 

unvested
Options 

exercised
Options 

cancelled
Options 

outstanding

Grant I  10.00 3,02,326.00  73,965.00 2,28,361.00  73,965.00  9,646.00 2,18,715.00 

Grant II  10.00  4,905.00  4,905.00  -    4,905.00  -    -   

Grant III  10.00  9,070.00  -    9,070.00  -    -    9,070.00 

Total 3,16,301.00  78,870.00 2,37,431.00  78,870.00  9,646.00 2,27,785.00 

nOte nO. 27 -  Leases
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Movement of Phantom stock options during the year

total for all grants no. of Options
range of exercise 

prices Rs.

weighted 
average exercise 

price Rs.

weighted 
average 

remaining 
contractual life 

(years)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 305,381 10.00 10.00  NA 
Granted during the year 9,070  2.00 
Forfeited/Lapsed during the year 7,796  NA 
Exercised during the year 78,870  NA 
Outstanding at the end of the year 227,785  2.00 
Exercisable at the end of the year 0  NA 

Significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value of options granted during the year.

variables

1. Risk Free Interest Rate 5.73

2.  Expected Life 1.86

3.  Expected Volatility 15.80

4.  Dividend Yield 0.90

5.  Price of the underlying share in market at the time of the option grant (Rs.) 2002

total expenses recognised for the year ended on 31st March 2020
The total expense recognised from share-based payment transactions for the year ended on 31 March 2020 is Rs. 
2,797.99 lakhs  (31 March 2019: Rs. 305.60 lakhs)

annex 2
Requirements under Companies Act, 2013

summary of status of epsOps granted
The position of the existing schemes is summarized as under -

sr. 
no.

particulars employees phantom stock Option plan 2019

I. details of the epsOps

1 Date of Shareholder's Approval 18-Jan-19

2 Total Number of Options approved 5,15,464

3 Vesting Requirements As per vesting schedule

4 ExercisePrice or Pricing formula (Rs.) Rs. 10.00

5 Maximum term of Options granted (years) 4 years

6 Source of shares

7 Variation in terms of ESOP N.A

II. Option Movement during the year

1 No. of Options Outstanding at the beginning of the year 305,381

2 Options Granted during the year 9,070

3 Options Forfeited 7,796

4 Options Lapsed during the year 0

5 Options Vested during the year 78,870

6 Options Exercised during the year 78,870

7 Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options 0

8 Money realised by exercise of options (Rs.) 0

9 Number of options Outstanding at the end of the year 227,785

10 Number of Options exercisable at the end of the year 0

nOte nO 28: eMpLOyees share Based payMents  (eMpLOyees phantOM 
stOck OptIOn pLan 2019)
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sr. 
no.

particulars employees phantom stock Option plan 2019

III weighted average exercise price of Options granted during the year whose

(a) Exercise price equals market price NA

(b) Exercise price is greater than market price NA

(c) Exercise price is less than market price  10.00 

weighted average fair value of options granted during the year whose

(a) Exercise price equals market price NA

(b) Exercise price is greater than market price NA

(c) Exercise price is less than market price  1,959.89 

The weighted average market price of options exercised during the year No Options Exercised during the year

Iv employee-wise details of options granted during the financial year 2019-20 to:
 (i) senior managerial personnel :

name no. of options granted 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 (ii)  employees who were granted, during the year, options amounting to 5% or more of the options 
granted during the year
name no. of options granted 

SWATI KHADYE  2,653 

GAYATRI PRABHU  2,651 

KUNAL JHAVERI  1,823 

DEBASHISH ROY  1,943 

 (iii)  Identified employees who were granted option, during the year equal to or exceeding 1% of the 
issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the company at the time of 
grant.
name no. of options granted 

Not Applicable NIL

v Method and assumptions used to estimate the fair value of options granted during the year:

 The fair value has been calculated using the Black Scholes Option Pricing model

 The Assumptions used in the model are as follows:

date of grant particulars

1. Risk Free Interest Rate 5.73

2. Expected Life 1.86

3. Expected Volatility 15.80

4. Dividend Yield 0.90

5. Price of the underlying share in market at the time of the option grant (Rs.)  2,002.00 

nOte nO 28: eMpLOyees share Based payMents  (eMpLOyees phantOM 
stOck OptIOn pLan 2019)
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 assumptions:
 Stock Price: Closing price on National Stock Exchange on the date of grant has been considered

 Volatility: The historical volatility over the expected life has been considered to calculate the fair value.

 Risk-free rate of return: The risk-free interest rate being considered for the calculation is the interest rate 
applicable for a maturity equal to the expected life of the options based on the zero-coupon yield curve for 
Government Securities.

 Exercise Price: Exercise Price of each specific grant has been considered.

 Time to Maturity: Time to Maturity / Expected Life of options is the period for which the Company expects the 
options to be live.

 Expected divided yield: Expected dividend yield has been calculated as an average of dividend yields for five financial 
years preceding the date of the grant.

vI Diluted Earnings Per Share pursuant to issue of shares on exercise of options calculated in 
accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 20

Not Applicable

nOte nO. 29 - reLated party transactIOns
Name of the parent Company : Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Name of the Ultimate parent Company : Mahindra & Mahindra Limited

Name of the Fellow subsidiaries : Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited

: Mahindra Integrated Business Solutions Limited

: Mahindra First Choice Wheels Limited

: Mahindra First Choice Services Limited

: N.B.S. International Limited

: Mahindra Retail Limited

: Mahindra Agri Solutions Limited

: Mahindra Consulting Engineers Limited

Key Management Personnel (KMP) : Dr Jaideep Devare, Managing Director

: Rupa Joshi, Company Secretary

: Saurabh V. Dharadhar, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f 18-07-2018)

Directors : Rajeev Dubey, Chairman

: Ramesh Iyer, Non Executive Director

: V Ravi, Non Executive Director

: Hemant Sikka, Non Executive Director

: Jyotin Mehta, Independent Director (w.e.f. 30th Mar 2020)

: Anjali Raina, Independent Director

: Derek Nazareth, Nominee Director

: Nityanath Ghanekar, Independent Director (Till 29th Mar 2020)

nOte nO 28: eMpLOyees share Based payMents  (eMpLOyees phantOM 
stOck OptIOn pLan 2019)
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Details of transaction between the Company and its related parties are disclosed below:

Rs. In lakhs

particulars
for the year 

ended

parent company 
and ultimate 

parent company

kMp/directors 
of the company

fellow 
subsidiaries

nature of transactions with related parties
Purchase of property and other assets 31-Mar-20  17.28  -    34.30 
including intangibles 31-Mar-19  5.11  20.51 
Rendering of services 31-Mar-20  5,799.83  -    -   

31-Mar-19  5,907.78  -    -   
Receiving of services 31-Mar-20  258.25  459.16  573.04 

31-Mar-19  241.86  262.37  422.47 
Interest Income 31-Mar-20  319.48  -    2,821.45 

31-Mar-19  552.53  1,967.13 
Loans given (including Fixed Deposits & 31-Mar-20  6,575.00  -    32,800.00 
Intercorporate  Deposits placed during the year) 31-Mar-19  17,625.00  29,500.00 
Loans taken (incl Fixed Deposits matured & 31-Mar-20  5,300.00  -    29,500.00 
Intercorporate Deposits withdrawn during the year) 31-Mar-19  12,250.00  19,375.00 
Dividend Paid 31-Mar-20  618.56  -    -   

31-Mar-19  371.13  -    -   
Commission and other benefits to directors 31-Mar-20  -    149.80  -   

31-Mar-19  -    20.40  -   
Sale of Fixed Assets 31-Mar-20  -    -    -   

31-Mar-19  9.82  -    -   

Rs. In lakhs

nature of Balances with related parties Balance as on
parent company 

and ultimate 
parent company

kMp of the 
company

Other related 
parties

Trade payables 31-Mar-20  25.86  -    8.29 
31-Mar-19  58.81  -    10.63 

Loans & advances given (incl. Fixed Deposits 31-Mar-20  5,200.00  -    32,800.00 
and Intercorporate Deposits placed) 31-Mar-19  3,925.00  -    29,500.00 
Trade Receivables 31-Mar-20  1,257.19  -    14.42 

31-Mar-19  2,839.50  -    80.82 
Interest Accured 31-Mar-20  251.17  -    1,415.44 

31-Mar-19  392.95  -    1,085.35 

compensation of key managerial personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key managerial personnel during the year was as follows:

Rs. In lakhs

particulars
for the year ended  

31 March 2020
for the year ended  

31 March 2019

Short-term employee benefits  459.16  262.37 
Post-employment benefits1  -    -   
Other long-term benefits1  -    -   
Termination benefits  -    -   
Share-based payment2  -    -   

1 Figures not available separately for gratuity and leave encashment

2 Included in the Stock Option Charge paid to parent company for its Stock Options granted to Key Managerial Personnel

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by the remuneration committee having regard to 
the performance of individuals and market trends.

nOte nO. 29 - reLated party transactIOns
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nOte nO. 30 - revenue frOM cOntract wIth custOMers
a. country-wise break up of revenue
 31-Mar-20

Rs. In lakhs

country

revenue from 
contracts with 

customers (Indas 
115)

revenue from 
operations from 

other than 
customers

total revenue 
from Operations

Other Income total Income

India  30,482.75  -    30,482.75  3,206.13  33,688.88 

Total  30,482.75  -    30,482.75  3,206.13  33,688.88 

 31-Mar-19

Rs. In lakhs

country

revenue from 
contracts with 

customers (Indas 
115)

revenue from 
operations from 

other than 
customers

total revenue 
from Operations

Other Income total Income

India  29,798.43  -    29,798.43  2,537.91  32,336.34 

Total  29,798.43  -    29,798.43  2,537.91  32,336.34 

B. Breakup of revenue into contracts entered in previous year and in current year
Rs. In lakhs

particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Revenue from PO/ contract / agreement entered into previous year  30,423.24  29,676.11 

Revenue from New PO/ contract / agreement entered into current year  59.51  122.33 

Total Revenue recognised during the period  30,482.75  29,798.44 

c.  reconciliation of revenue from contract with customer
Rs. In lakhs

particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Revenue from contract with customer as per the contract price  30,482.75  29,798.43 

Adjustments made to contract price on account  of :-

a)  Discounts / Rebates / Incentives  -    -   

b)  Sales Returns / Reversals  -    -   

c)  Deferrment of revenue  -    -   

d)  Changes in estimates of variable consideration  -    -   

e)  Recognition of revenue from contract liability out of opening balance of contract 
liability

 -    -   

f)  Any other adjustments  -    -   

Revenue from contract with customer as per the statement of Profit and Loss  30,482.75  29,798.43 
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d.  revenue to be recognised for performance obligation(s) not satisfied or partially satisfied at 
the end of the current year in respect of contracts with customer that are in place (i.e. signed 
agreements/ pos/wos/sOws, etc) at the end of reporting period.

 The company has reviewed the contract with insurers and customers and indentified claims handling services 
as an area that is affected by the new accounting standard. The application of new standard results in the 
indentifiaction of separate performance obligation for handling claims on behalf of customers as part of insurance 
brokerage customary business practice. The new standard requires the deferral of revenue recognition untill the 
performance obligation is satisifed. Based on the results of the review, the company does not expect a material 
imapct on the statement of profit and loss.

e.  Break-up of provision for expected credit Losses recognised in p&L
Rs. In lakhs

particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Expected Credit loss recognised during the year on trade receivables 81.46  81.25 

Expected Credit loss recognised during the year on contract assets  -    -   

Expected Credit loss recognised during the year on others  -    -   

Total 81.46  81.25 

nOte nO. 31 - IncOMe receIved frOM Insurer and Insurer's grOup 
cOMpanIes
As per regulation 34 (6) of IRDAI (Insurance Brokers) Regulations, 2018, following are the details of all the incomes 
received from insurers and insurer's group companies

a. details of incomes received from insurers (top 15+ Others)
Rs. In lakhs

particulars
year ended  

31 March 2020

Tata AIG General Insurance Co Ltd  2,506.33 

Iffco Tokio General Insurance Co Ltd  2,037.79 

ICICI Lombard General Insurance Ltd  2,000.98 

Royal Sundaram Alliance Insurance Co Ltd  1,715.84 

Liberty Videocon General Insurance Co Ltd  1,403.78 

New India Assurance Co Ltd  1,281.81 

Bharti AXA General Insurance Co Ltd  1,246.73 

United India Insurance Co Ltd  793.00 

Oriental Insurance Co Ltd  670.30 

Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Co Ltd  654.62 

Future Generali Insurance Co Ltd  636.33 

Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Co Ltd  524.96 

GO DIGIT General Insurance Limited  416.66 

HDFC Ergo General Insurance Company Limited  401.56 

MAGMA HDI General Insurance Co Ltd  311.03 

Others  1,116.42 

Total Revenue  17,718.14 

nOte nO. 30 - revenue frOM cOntract wIth custOMers
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Rs. In lakhs

particulars
year ended  

31 March 2019

Tata AIG General Insurance Co Ltd  3,352.70 

ICICI Lombard General Insurance Ltd  2,417.69 

New India Assurance Co Ltd  1,560.66 

Oriental Insurance Co Ltd  1,551.09 

Royal Sundaram Alliance Insurance Co Ltd  1,451.00 

Iffco Tokio General Insurance Co Ltd  1,150.79 

Bharti Axa General Insurance Co Ltd  857.66 

Liberty Videocon General Insurance Co Ltd  814.11 

United India Insurance Co Ltd  793.65 

Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Co Ltd  691.48 

Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Co Ltd  453.24 

HDFC Ergo General Insurance Company Limited  292.69 

Future Generali Insurance Co Ltd  229.33 

National Insurance Co Ltd  183.08 

Sogaz Insurance  113.61 

Others  773.74 

Total Revenue  16,686.52 

B.  the company has not received any income from any of the insurers' group companies.
 note no. 31 - details of payments received by the group companies and/or associates and/or related parties 

of the insurance broker from any insurer and the details thereof.

 As per regulation 34 (6) of IRDAI (Insurance Brokers) Regulations, 2018, following are the  details of payments 
received by the group companies and/or associates and/or related parties of the insurance broker from any 
insurer and the details thereof.

 As per the information received from the group companies, payments received by Mahindra & Mahindra Financial 
Services Limited ("MMFSL")

Rs. In lakhs

name of Insurance company
year ended  

31 March 2020*

Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Co Ltd  27.00 

Go Digit General Insurance Company Ltd  32.87 

Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Co Ltd  308.93 

Future Generali India Insurance Co Ltd  102.71 

ICICI Lombard General Insurance Ltd  194.40 

IFFCO Tokio General Insurance Co Ltd  162.82 

Liberty Videocon General Insurance Co Ltd  108.00 

Liberty General Insurance Co Ltd  324.00 

Royal Sundaram Alliance Insurance Co Ltd  3,353.56 

Tata AIG General Insurance Co Ltd  532.10 

Total  5,146.39 

 * Payments are received towards usage of office space of MMFSL branches for display of marketing material/ 
advertisements of insurnace companies. 

nOte nO. 31 - IncOMe receIved frOM Insurer and Insurer's grOup 
cOMpanIes
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Rs. In lakhs

name of Insurance company
year ended  

31 March 2019*

Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Co Ltd  150.00 

Bharti AXA General Insurance Co Ltd  350.00 

Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Co Ltd  260.43 

Future Generali India Insurance Co Ltd  50.00 

ICICI Lombard General Insurance Ltd  325.00 

IFFCO Tokio General Insurance Co Ltd  120.00 

National Insurance Co Ltd  3.75 

Liberty Videocon General Insurance Co Ltd  350.00 

MAGMA HDI General Insurance Co Ltd  150.00 

Royal Sundaram Alliance Insurance Co Ltd  3,294.60 

Tata AIG General Insurance Co Ltd  770.00 

Total  5,823.78 

 * Payments are received towards usage of office space of MMFSL branches for display of marketing material/ 
advertisements of insurnace companies. 

nOte nO. 32 - cOntIngent LIaBILItIes and cOMMItMents 
contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for)

Rs. In lakhs

particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

contingent liabilities

Interest on TDS  16.51  -   

Rs. In lakhs

particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

commitments #

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account  
and not provided for:

Commitments for the acquisition of intangible assets  150.93  148.63 

nOte nO. 33- addItIOnaL InfOrMatIOn tO the fInancIaL stateMents
33.1 dividend
In respect of the current year, the directors propose that a dividend of Rs. NIL per share be paid on equity shares on 
May 08, 2020. This equity dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not 
been included as a liability in these financial statements.

 note no. 31 - details of payments received by the group companies and/or associates and/or related parties 
of the insurance broker from any insurer and the details thereof.
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33.2 disclosures required under section 22 of the Micro, small and Medium enterprises development 
act, 2006

Rs. In lakhs

particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to MSME suppliers as on  0.51  -   

(ii) Interest due on unpaid principal amount to MSME suppliers as on  -    -   

(iii) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the MSME 
suppliers beyond the appointed day 

 -    -   

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year (without adding the interest under 
MSME Development Act)

 -    -   

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as on  -    -   

(vi) The amount of interest due and payable to be disallowed under Income Tax Act, 1961  -    -   

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the 
basis of information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

33.3 corporate social responsibility (csr)
Rs. In lakhs

particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Amount required to be spent as per section 135 of the Act  184.88  160.13 

Amount spent during the year on:

(i) Construction / acquistion of an asset  -    -   

(ii) On purpose other than  (i) above  185.20  160.33 

Total  185.20  160.33 

33.4 note on cOvId 19
The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Indian economy and the Company remains uncertain. The severity of its 
impact will depend on its spread and duration, customer responses and the response of governments and regulators like 
the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India. There has been a modest stress on the business portfolio 
of the Company as at the year end majorly due to the nationwide lockdown announced by the government. The Company 
anticipates that the lockdown shall continue to be in force for a substantive period in quarter 1 of next financial year also. 
Owing to the uncertainty surrounding the same, the stress on the business portfolio can be continued in quarter 1 of the 
next financial year as well. Temporary decline in business volumes can be anticipated but as the situation recovers and there 
are relaxations in the lockdowns in the quarters to come, the business volumes are expected to gradually return to normal. 
Any changes made to ECL to estimate the overall impact of Covid-2019 will be subject to very high levels of uncertainty 
as so little reasonable and supportable forward-looking information is currently available on which to base those 
changes. Any changes to the ECL model at this stage, hence, could lead to the risk of the Company recognizing 
inappropriate levels of ECL. Hence there are no material changes in the policies and behavioral lifetime estimates in 
the ECL Model for the year ended March 31, 2020.

nOte nO. 33- addItIOnaL InfOrMatIOn tO the fInancIaL stateMents
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nOte nO. 34 - prevIOus year fIgures
- Previous year figures have been regrouped /reclassified wherever found necessary.

The financial statements of Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited were approved by the Board of Directors and 
authorised for issue on May 08, 2020.

Signatures to Notes 1 to 34

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

for Mukund M. chitale & co.  rajeev dubey ramesh Iyer v ravi hemant sikka Jyotin Mehta
Chartered Accountants  Chairman Director  Director Director Director
Firm Regn No. 106655W  DIN: 00104817 DIN: 00220759 DIN: 00307328 DIN: 00922281 DIN: 00033518

saurabh M chitale anjali raina derek nazareth dr Jaideep devare rupa Joshi saurabh v. dharadhar
Partner Director    Director Managing Director Company  Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 111383 DIN: 02327927 DIN: 07031760 DIN: 00009112 Mem No.: ACS 17395

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date  : May 08, 2020 Date  : May 08, 2020
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